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CHAPTER I. INTERNACHAPTER I. INTERNACHAPTER I. INTERNACHAPTER I. INTERNACHAPTER I. INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTTIONAL ENVIRONMENTTIONAL ENVIRONMENTTIONAL ENVIRONMENTTIONAL ENVIRONMENT

I.1  WORLD ECONOMY

In 2003 world economy experienced a moderate growth. The increased uncertainty following
Iraq war, negative effect of artificial increase of equity prices in the United States and the

effect of SARS epidemic in countries of East Asia led to a weakening of international trade
and production during April – June. Meanwhile, since the third quarter of the year, the
economy started showing signs of improvement, especially in countries such as the United
States, Japan and some countries of Asia.

Large economies have implemented easing macroeconomic policies in 2003, reflecting
low inflationary pressures. Led by ECB and FOMC, monetary authorities of leading economies
in the world have continued to lower key interest rates. At the same time, these economies
have followed an expansionary fiscal policy, especially in the United States. European
economies were not left behind as traces of fiscal expansion were reflected in breaching
the criterion of Maastricht Treaty which limits budget deficit to 3 per cent of GDP.

Yet, it seems that stimulating macroeconomic policies have been more efficient in the
United States and Great Britain.

Chart I.1 Economic growth of leading countriesChart I.1 Economic growth of leading countriesChart I.1 Economic growth of leading countriesChart I.1 Economic growth of leading countriesChart I.1 Economic growth of leading countries

Source: IMF, World Economic Outlook, September 2003.

TTTTTable I.1    Inflation (12-month change in percent) and unemployment rate (percentable I.1    Inflation (12-month change in percent) and unemployment rate (percentable I.1    Inflation (12-month change in percent) and unemployment rate (percentable I.1    Inflation (12-month change in percent) and unemployment rate (percentable I.1    Inflation (12-month change in percent) and unemployment rate (percent
of labor force) in the euro area and the United Statesof labor force) in the euro area and the United Statesof labor force) in the euro area and the United Statesof labor force) in the euro area and the United Statesof labor force) in the euro area and the United States
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Excess liquidity in financial markets, easing monetary policies and expectations that interest
rates would remain low for a period longer than it was thought of in the beginning, led to
the decline of interest rates of financial instruments of long maturity. In June these rates
reached the lowest point in the last forty years. The following months marked a slight
increase of financial instruments rates, which was more evident in the United States. This
move followed the positive signals underlining the improvements of economic environment
and low inflationary pressures. However, they were considered still low as a result of large
demand for long term maturity American bonds from the Asian countries.

In exchange markets, the US currency has continued to depreciate against euro and other
currencies of industrialized countries. Relatively lower interest rates, rising concerns about
the current account deficit and the increasing fear of terrorist attacks in the United States
are believed to have contributed to US dollar depreciation.

I.1.1 EUROPEAN ECONOMY.

During 2003 the economy in the euro area countries developed at a slower pace than
expectations. The Gross Domestic Product in the second quarter recorded its lowest growth
rate, consequent on the low demand for consumption and private investments in tangible
assets, as well as increase of imports by higher rates than extra-euro area exports.
Improvements in the global economic environment during the third quarter have ameliorated
the performance of European exports. This fact is believed to have been a decisive factor in
the GDP growth of euro area countries, especially in that of Germany and France.

Despite the positive signs showed in the euro area during the second half of the year,
business and consumer confidence remained low, unemployment rate stood at a high 9
per cent until December, and the industrial production growth rate was not stable.
Furthermore, consumer price index has recorded a relatively low and stable increasing rate
for the euro area over the whole year. Inflation rate reached 2 per cent at the end of the year,
being driven mainly from the price of energy and raw food. Low domestic demand and
euro appreciation against American dollar have been the key factors influencing the sluggish
development of the euro area during 2003.

I.1.2 AMERICAN ECONOMY

Economic activity of the United States expanded during 2003. The adjusting macroeconomic
policies and continuous productivity growth have served to sustain domestic demand.
GDP rate increased rapidly from one quarter to the other. Private consumption expenditures,
government expenditures and fixed investments have been the main contributors to GDP.

The beginning of 2003 marked the culmination of Iraq war. Consequently, forecasts for the
first quarter were conditioned by the uncertainties following conflicts in Iraq. The rise of oil
price and the worsening of budget deficit due to increasing defense expenditures led to
economic decline in general. Consumer confidence index was shaken, adding to business
reluctance to invest in projects and hire new employees.

The fast termination of military interventions in Iraq played a decisive role in the American
economy, which reacted immediately to the event. GDP grew by 4.3 per cent in the last
quarter compared to the corresponding period of the last year. Meanwhile, inflation rate
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kept dropping from 3 per cent in the first quarter to 1.9 per cent in December. Unemployment
rate declined gradually to 5.9 per cent compared to its 6.1 per cent high in mid year. US
dollar depreciation was in line with the aims of American policy-makers, although the trade
deficit indicator showed slight improvements.

I.1.3 EXCHANGE RATES

International foreign exchange markets were characterized by a continued appreciation of
euro against US dollar. At the beginning of the year, one euro was buying US$1.0392, while
by the end of the year the exchange rate stood at 1.259, a change of 21 per cent. US dollar
depreciation during the whole year was conditioned to a certain extent by the Iraq war, as
well as by the economic agents and the decision-making of the countries.

The first quarter of the year was surrounded by geo-political uncertainties associated with
Iraq war. Consequently, US dollar fluctuations have been shaped by confusion about the
performance of American economy and its indicators threatened by high fiscal deficit, high
capital account deficit, low industrial production and weak labor markets. Therefore, the
international investors’ confidence in US dollar declined, reducing their share of portfolio in
this currency and leading the dollar to a further drop.

Yet, the performance of US currency remained the same even during the second part of the
year, when the American economy started to show signs of recovery.

Despite economic factors, US dollar drop has found support from the American authorities
that have given up expressing themselves in favor of strong dollar policies. A weaker dollar
would help to recover exports and correct current account deficit, hence making the
revitalization of the American economy more sustainable. Also, the lowering of Fed interest
rate and public statements on reviewing Japanese and Chinese monetary and foreign
exchange regimes have come to encourage this attitude.

Meanwhile, a strong euro has not aided the economy of the euro area. Euro’s strength has
often been blamed for the poor performance of the economy. However, euro’s nominal
appreciation against dollar does not fully reflect the relative competitive edge of the two
economies. Compared to selected currency baskets, US dollar nominal effective rate has
been depreciated by 15 per cent, while that of euro has been appreciated by 10.76 per
cent.

Chart I.2 Movements of nominal effective exchange rate of euro and US dollarChart I.2 Movements of nominal effective exchange rate of euro and US dollarChart I.2 Movements of nominal effective exchange rate of euro and US dollarChart I.2 Movements of nominal effective exchange rate of euro and US dollarChart I.2 Movements of nominal effective exchange rate of euro and US dollar
and usd/euro spot exchange rate during 2003and usd/euro spot exchange rate during 2003and usd/euro spot exchange rate during 2003and usd/euro spot exchange rate during 2003and usd/euro spot exchange rate during 2003
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I.1.4 CENTRAL BANKS’ INTEREST RATES

Monetary policy of central banks in the most industrialized countries has been characterized
by easing trends. Given a low inflation rate and even the existing concerns on possible
deflation, an easing monetary policy has aimed at fostering economic growth.

European Central Bank has cut interest rates twice, once in March and the other time in
June. These moves sent interest rate from 2.75 per cent to 2.00 per cent. During 2003, the
Council of European Central Bank affirmed that decisions on monetary policy would fully
uphold the maintenance of price stability over the medium term. Euro’s appreciation caused
the price of oil to be cheaper, thus lowering inflationary pressures and allowing enough
room for ECB to cut interest rates. Although money supply and liquidity stood at high levels
during this period, ECB analysts believed that inflationary pressures would not strengthen
due to weak economic development and uncertain future.

Fed Open Market Committee reacted using interest rates only after the ECB Council made
its second move. The Committee decided to reduce interest rate from 1.25 per cent to 1.00
per cent. The decision was made to support economic growth in view of weak inflationary
pressures.

Chart I.3 Monetary policy of leading economiesChart I.3 Monetary policy of leading economiesChart I.3 Monetary policy of leading economiesChart I.3 Monetary policy of leading economiesChart I.3 Monetary policy of leading economies

I.1.5 OIL PRICE

Oil prices have fluctuated largely during 2003 mainly because of political events in the
world. In the first two weeks of March, the price of a barrel dropped from US$34 to US$25.
During the fights in Iraq, the supply of oil did not change much as the quota provided by
this country was replaced by the supply coming from other OPEC members, mostly from
Saudi Arabia.

Other countries like Venezuela and Nigeria have also triggered variations in the price of oil.
A two-month strike of the state-owned oil company in Venezuela contributed to shortages
of oil output in this country. The situation however improved sooner than it was expected
and the number of oil barrels produced per day reached to 3.3 million compared to 3.2
million before the strike. In Nigeria, the oil supply remained unstable due to internal conflicts.
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In September OPEC reduced its supply of oil by 900,000 barrels a day. Consequently the
price per barrel varied around US$35, while the target price for OPEC lies from 22 to 28 US
dollar per barrel. At present, OPEC (excluding Iraq) supplies 24.5 million barrels of oil daily,
contributing to 40 per cent of the overall oil output in the world.

Chart I.4 Oil price during 2003Chart I.4 Oil price during 2003Chart I.4 Oil price during 2003Chart I.4 Oil price during 2003Chart I.4 Oil price during 2003

I.2 ECONOMIES OF THE REGION

In general, economies of the regional countries have marked high growth rates during 2003,
combined with low inflation and interest rates. Implementation of reforms has been an
additional factor supporting the achievement of optimistic results.

TTTTTable 2:  Rable 2:  Rable 2:  Rable 2:  Rable 2:  Regional Countries Economic Indicators in 2003.egional Countries Economic Indicators in 2003.egional Countries Economic Indicators in 2003.egional Countries Economic Indicators in 2003.egional Countries Economic Indicators in 2003.

TURKEY
In 2003 Turkish economy grew by 5.4 per cent. Industrial production increased by 12.6 per
cent compared to the previous year. The rate of capital mobilization increased to 80.9 in
July, the highest since October 2002. Unemployment rate stood at 10.2 per cent, being at
almost the same level as a year ago.
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The actual rate and expectations for inflation have marked a downward trend following the
tight monetary policy implemented by Central Bank of Turkey. Annual inflation rate for 2003
dropped to 25.4 per cent compared to 45 per cent in 2002.

MACEDONIA
In general, positive developments have been noted also in the Former Yugoslavian Republic
of Macedonia, although the economic growth rate of 3 per cent was lower than that of a
year ago.

Annual inflation change stood at 2.5 per cent while the average inflation rate scored 1.1 per
cent. Budget deficit reached to 1.5 per cent of GDP, being at the lowest level over the last
three years. Imports have increased at a greater extent than exports and current account
deficit was calculated at 1.5 per cent of GDP, being slightly lower than in the previous year.

SERBIA & MONTENEGRO
Political crises in the country have slowed down the institutional reforms related to banking
sector and other sectors of economy. Nevertheless, the country’s economy grew by 4 per
cent in real terms, same as last year growth.

Progress has been made in terms of consolidating fiscal position. Budget deficit accounted
for 2.5 per cent of GDP compared to 5.7 per cent in 2002. The greatest challenge seems to
be the reduction of unemployment rate, which keeps increasing due to structural reforms in
the economy. According to data from Ministry of Labor and Social Affairs, unemployment
rate reached to 34.7 per cent.

CROATIA
In 2003 Croatian economy grew slower than it did last year. During the first ten months,
industrial production increased by 2.4 per cent compared to 4.6 per cent during the same
period of the last year. Real GDP growth still marks a relatively high value, 5.0 per cent.

Annual inflation rate stood at 1.5 per cent, while unemployment rate was 14.1 per cent,
dropping by 2 percentage points from the previous year rate.

However, it seems that fiscal consolidation remains one of the major concerns for the
country. In 2003 budget deficit rested at a constant level of 5 per cent of GDP.
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CHAPTER II. ALBANIAN ECONOMYCHAPTER II. ALBANIAN ECONOMYCHAPTER II. ALBANIAN ECONOMYCHAPTER II. ALBANIAN ECONOMYCHAPTER II. ALBANIAN ECONOMY

The compliance with the main macroeconomic objetives settled by the mid-term poverty
reduction and economic growth program enabled the sustenance of the domestic

macroeconomic equilibrium during 2003.

The year 2003 left the impression that the Albanian economy experienced a recovered
pulse of economic growth. Preliminary economic evaluations revealed a 6 per cent growth
of Gross Domestic Product during 2003, compared to 4.7 per cent marked in 2002. The
pick up in the economic activity was proved by all sectors of economy, but it was particularly
evidenced in the construction, transport and service sector. The economic progress was
additionally amplified by the investment growth, which amounted to 22.3 per cent of GDP,
reflecting a 0.3 per cent growth compared to 2002. Investments in the private sector, which
counted for 75 per cent of total investments, were highly backed up financially by the
banking system. The outstanding credit extended during 2003 grew by ALL* 11.9 billions,
equivalently to 30.7 per cent.

The labor market activity evidenced a slight upturn, highlighting an increase in the number
of employed persons. Nevertheless, the transition phenomena: emigration and informal
economy contracted the employment potential as well as shadowed the effect of employment
and economic development strategies. The unemployment rate registered in 2003 was 15
per cent, 0.8 per cent lower then in 2002.

The inflation rate remained within the monetary policy objective, marking 3.3 per cent in
December 2003, while the consumer price experienced a 2.37 per cent growth on average.
The general control of demand pressures through effective monetary and fiscal policies
contributed to maintain a low inflation rate throughout the year.

Developments in public finances during 2003 were characterized by a rational distribution
of fiscal expenditures. The government demand to raise funds was dispersed more uniformly
throughout the year, condensing the concentration of deficit financing at year-end. Moreover,
the local elections of October and the irritated political climate during the second half of the
year were not accompanied by any expenditure concentration or any other infringement of
the fiscal discipline. These specifics, along with the limitation of government domestic
borrowing to 2.7 per cent of GDP, enhanced the fiscal policy contribution to macroeconomic
stability and particularly to price stability. Nevertheless, the Achilles’ heel remained the
revenue collection, which reckoned 93 per cent of the forecasted incomes, and especially
the capital expenditures which resulted only in 62 per cent of the projected amount.

Year 2003 saw favorable developments in the foreign sector of economy, underscoring the
substantial increase in the current incomes and expenditures. The current account deficit
was evaluated to count 6.7 per cent of GDP, revealing a decrease of 2 per cent vis-à-vis the
deficit in 2002. Yet to be mentioned, the trade deficit keeps increasing in absolute terms. It
reflects the augmented domestic consumption, which urges the need to expand the
production capacity and competition of the Albanian economy. Nevertheless, the positive
developments in the balance of payments brought about a continuous increase of foreign
exchange reserves. The level of foreign exchange reserves recorded USD1 billion for the
first time in December 2003, ending up to USD 1.026 billion at the end of December 2003.

*ALL: Albanian Lek



22

TTTTTable II.1 Main economic indicatorsable II.1 Main economic indicatorsable II.1 Main economic indicatorsable II.1 Main economic indicatorsable II.1 Main economic indicators

II.1 SECTORAL ANALYSIS

A general view on the performance of different sectors of economy clearly highlights the
impact of service sector, whose contribution to total domestic production has been growing.
Whereas, the agriculture, which historically has been one of the most potential economic
sectors was positioned just in the opposite side by revealing a clear downsizing contribution.
The main reasons behind this remain the land reform, land division, ownership and
demographic movements.

1 The data on the real growth of GDP for 1996-2000 are taken from the Institution of Statistics. For the rest of the years,
the respective data are evaluations of Ministry of Finance, IMF, and Bank of Albania.
2 Nominal GDP is adapted by using the average exchange rate. During 2003, USD has been appreciated on average 13
per cent against ALL.
3 The employment data correspond to the nine-month period of 2003.
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TTTTTable II.2  Domestic Pable II.2  Domestic Pable II.2  Domestic Pable II.2  Domestic Pable II.2  Domestic Production Decomposed by Economic Sectorsroduction Decomposed by Economic Sectorsroduction Decomposed by Economic Sectorsroduction Decomposed by Economic Sectorsroduction Decomposed by Economic Sectors

II.1.1 INDUSTRY

The industrial production saw a significant growth during 2003, appending the economic
development of the country. The sales of manufactured products amounted to ALL 20.5
billions, divulging an increase of 18 per cent compared to last year. The mining, oil and gas
extracting industry, particularly the hydrocarbon and energy sub-sectors experienced a 77.5
per cent growth (respectively 12 and 90 per cent). Metal processing industry, machinery
and textile industrial sectors were the only non-performing segments.

TTTTTable II.3 Sales Growth of Selected Economic Sectors (%)able II.3 Sales Growth of Selected Economic Sectors (%)able II.3 Sales Growth of Selected Economic Sectors (%)able II.3 Sales Growth of Selected Economic Sectors (%)able II.3 Sales Growth of Selected Economic Sectors (%)44444

As it has already been mentioned, during 2003, the electrical energy situation of the country
was more favorable compared to the previous periods. This can be attributed to better
atmospheric conditions, along with a more effective administration of the Albanian Power
Corporation. As it is noticed in Table5  II.4, the imported energy diminished by 46.5 per cent
with respect to the previous year. At the same time, the internal production capacity met 80
per cent of the domestic demand, compared to 57 per cent of the last year. Regrettably, 37
per cent of the total energy production was lost during distribution. Households’ energy
consumption inflated this year by 9.4 percent, counting for 63.3 per cent of the total energy
utilization.   

    
    

    
    

    
    

 

4 Table II.3 shows the sales volume change in percentage for the country’s economic activity. As such, it may be used
as a reference even for the other sectors analyzed below.
5 It is difficult to understand the real change of the indicators, since the only available data are in current prices.
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TTTTTable II.4   Electric Energy Main Indicators (in millions of ALL)able II.4   Electric Energy Main Indicators (in millions of ALL)able II.4   Electric Energy Main Indicators (in millions of ALL)able II.4   Electric Energy Main Indicators (in millions of ALL)able II.4   Electric Energy Main Indicators (in millions of ALL)

II.1.2  AGRICULTURE

Although the agricultural sector has lately experienced a loss of importance, it still remains
one of the main sectors of economy reckoning for 24.7 percent of the Gross Domestic
Product. Ministry of Food and Agriculture releases speak of a 3 per cent increase of agricultural
product during 2003 compared to the preceding year.

Specific 2003 performance of the main components of the agricultural product estimated
from the Ministry of Food and Agriculture would be briefly described as follows:

• Production of field crops, in general, kept the same pace as in the last year. The
low temperatures of April and the prolonged summer drought resulted in low wheat
and vegetable harvest. In contrast, the corn and industrial plant yield a beyond
forecasted production.

• Fruit farming production boosted by 9.6 per cent during 2003.
• Animal farming yielded a 4.6 per cent increased production.

Moreover, the agro-industrial and fishing sectors have been developed according to
expectations, marking respectively 10 per cent and 15 per cent.

TTTTTable II.1 Fable II.1 Fable II.1 Fable II.1 Fable II.1 Forecasted Porecasted Porecasted Porecasted Porecasted Performance of Agricultural Sector over 2003erformance of Agricultural Sector over 2003erformance of Agricultural Sector over 2003erformance of Agricultural Sector over 2003erformance of Agricultural Sector over 2003

The new credit extended to agricultural sector amounted to ALL 712 millions during 2003,
revealing a 25 percent increase compared to the respective figure of 2002. Nevertheless,
the support of banking system towards this economic subdivision remains at pretty trifling
levels, counting for only 1 per cent of the total credit portfolio.

The low organizational level, land partitioning, underdeveloped infrastructure in rural areas,
lack of financing resulting in failure to use the advanced technology or other efficient
processing and preservation methods, as well as the continuous immigration towards
urban zones continue to be the main obstacles inhibiting the progress of agricultural sector.
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Overcoming these difficulties will undoubtedly speed the future development of this economic
sector.

II.1.3 CONSTRUCTION

Construction is one of the most dynamic sectors of the Albanian economy. During the nine
months to September 2003, revenues in the construction industry rose by 22 per cents
compared to the same period of a year earlier, which is considered as a high growth in real
terms. Whilst, the annual raise in the construction cost index registred only 2.7 per cent.

Chart II.1  Construction Cost Index Movements.Chart II.1  Construction Cost Index Movements.Chart II.1  Construction Cost Index Movements.Chart II.1  Construction Cost Index Movements.Chart II.1  Construction Cost Index Movements.

Source: Institute of Statistics.

One of the main factors that drove up the construction cost was the direct expenditure,
which climbed by 3.8 per cent. In addition, the cost of building materials rose by 4 per
cent, accompanied by an increase of respectively 2.4 and 3.8 per cent of the electrical
inputs and sanitary supplies. The salary expenditures ascended by 3.5 per cent. The only
expenditure category that dwindled by 2.3 per cent was the transport operating cost.

Nevertheless, the projected turnover and the number of the built construction-yards did not
face any remarkable change during this year compared to one year earlier. These factors,
along with the improved regulative framework of this sector are expected to bring a new
developing rhythm.

II.1.4 SERVICES

During 2003 the service sector experienced another upward year, yielding 46.1 per cent of
the gross domestic product. The sales volume of the sub-categories “trade, hotels,
restaurants” and “other services” mounted by 11.5 per cent compared to the preceding
year. According to the estimates released by the experts of balance of payments, the
incomes from tourism activity grew by 7.2 per cent, which still remains lower then the
expenditures rate of Albanians for the out-of-country tourism. This resulted in a net fall of
incomes from tourism activity, amounting at USD 33 millions vis-à-vis USD 121 millions that
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was the respective figure last year. The new extended credit to the service sector6 totaled
ALL 55.9 billions, while the outstanding credit summed ALL 24.9 billions by the end of the
year, sharing 49 per cent of the total crediting activity of the banking sector.

II.1.5 TRANSPORT

During 2003 investments in transport sector experienced a 3 per cent moderate growth. In
plain number these investments were ALL 9.7 billions. This acceleration was primarily
fuelled by the enclosure of a 7 per cent higher governmental budget, aiming at improving
the domestic infrastructure. Whereas, the financial investments through credit extensions
and grants remained at the same level as in the last year, plainly ALL 5.3 billions. The
construction and assembling activities received 80 per cent of these investments, while the
rest were distributed between other transport categories and structural design activities,
respectively 15 and 5 per cent of the budget.

II.2  SAVINGS AND INVESTMENTS

The 2003-estimated ratio of the domestic savings7 against GDP was 14.0 per cent. In this
year, they slightly mounted by 0.8 per cent, being impacted by the increase of public
savings8, which had a positive value for the first time during the transition period. The
positive value of the public savings can be attributed to the consolidated financial discipline,
along with the well-managed budget deficit. Nonetheless, the domestic private savings
remained the main source of the savings in the Albanian economy. The estimated weight of
the private savings to Gross Domestic Product was 13.3 per cent during 2003. The level of
the real interest rates encouraged the investment of a part of these savings as bank deposits.

Chart II.2  Savings and Investments as a percentage of GDPChart II.2  Savings and Investments as a percentage of GDPChart II.2  Savings and Investments as a percentage of GDPChart II.2  Savings and Investments as a percentage of GDPChart II.2  Savings and Investments as a percentage of GDP

Source: IMF, Country Report, January 2004.

6 Credit extended to trade, vehicles repairing, hotels, restaurants, services and social activity, collective and personal
services, are included here.
7 The data on savings and investments are cited from the IMF paper: Country
 report 04/22 ‘Albania: Review under the three year arrangement under poverty reduction and growth facility - staff
report’, January 2004.
8 Public savings are estimated as the difference between the incomes and current expenditures.
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Total investments of economy weighted 22.3 per cent of GDP. The growth of investments is
fully attributed to the expansion of private investments, since the public ones were cut
down by 11.7 per cent due to the partial completion of the projected capital expenditures.

Chart II.3  Public and Private Investments as a percentage of GDPChart II.3  Public and Private Investments as a percentage of GDPChart II.3  Public and Private Investments as a percentage of GDPChart II.3  Public and Private Investments as a percentage of GDPChart II.3  Public and Private Investments as a percentage of GDP

Source: IMF, Country Report, January 2004.

The balance of savings and investments remained pretty much equilibrated during 2003.
Actually, the faster growth rate of domestic savings resulted in a reduction of the current
account deficit. Nevertheless, channeling the saving to actual investments must remain
one of the main governmental priorities.

II.3  LABOR MARKET9

Labor market experienced several structural transformations during 2003. The main variations
were noticed in the total labor supply, total number and structure of the employed persons,
as well as in the unemployment rate.

TTTTTable II.6 Lable II.6 Lable II.6 Lable II.6 Lable II.6 Labor Markabor Markabor Markabor Markabor Market: Main Indicators (in thousands of persons)et: Main Indicators (in thousands of persons)et: Main Indicators (in thousands of persons)et: Main Indicators (in thousands of persons)et: Main Indicators (in thousands of persons)

9 Despite the progress made in the statistical method, the resulted labour market indicators should be considered
with precaution, due to high deformation caused by the uncontrolled migration. This migration brings continuous
changes in the concentration of the population in rural and urban areas, and the existence of a relatively large black
employment market
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II.3.1 LABOUR SUPPLY

The labor supply suffered a slight decrease, quantifying at 1.091 million persons by the end
of 2003. The continuous decrease of labor force during the four quarters of this year confirmed
that the emigration phenomenon and the informal market employment are still strong in
Albania.

II.3.2 EMPLOYMENT

The end of the year 2003 marked a 6 thousand increase in the number of employed persons.
This increase was mainly ascribed to the expansion of employment in the private non-
agricultural sector, particularly on the retail trade and services. The number of persons
employed in the private non-agricultural sector totaled 4 thousand at the end of 2003, while
the concentrated growth of employment in the retail trade was 12.8 per cent compared to
the end of 2002. On the other hand, the continuous reforms in the public sector, driven by
the obligation to meet the European Union requirements, reduced the employment in this
sector by 5 thousand persons.

The increase in the number of persons employed in the private agricultural sector seemed
to bear the most remarkable growth. Nevertheless, the figure of 8 thousand increase was a
result of a more exact counting of natural labor supply in the last population registration. In
fact, the period of economic transition in Albania was accompanied with population
movements from rural areas towards urban centers. No movements are noticed in the
opposite direction. This actuality makes doubtful the real employment growth in this sector.

II.3.3 UNEMPLOYMENT

The number of unemployed persons fell by 9 thousands during 2003, totaling 164 thousand
persons by the end of the year, equal to 15 per cent unemployment rate. The drop in the
unemployment rate was a quarter to quarter event, revealing the highest zenith in the
beginning of the year, when the number of unemployed persons fell by 6 thousands.

The number of persons that received unemployed benefits remained at the same level as in
the last year, summing at 11 thousand. The only noticed improvement is unveiled if the
comparison is done with respect to the year 2001, when this category numbered 21 thousand
persons.

Nevertheless, the entire analysis performed on the employment figures is subject to data
limitation. The only clear conclusion that can be drawn is that besides the visible improvement,
unemployment remains one of the greatest problems that needs particular attention in the
years to come.
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Chart II.4 Unemployment during the last three years (in thousand of persons)Chart II.4 Unemployment during the last three years (in thousand of persons)Chart II.4 Unemployment during the last three years (in thousand of persons)Chart II.4 Unemployment during the last three years (in thousand of persons)Chart II.4 Unemployment during the last three years (in thousand of persons)

II.4  FISCAL SECTOR

According to the principles enclosed by the Mid-term Budget Program 2002-2005, the
main objective of the budget of 2003 was the intensification of the fiscal discipline, which
in general terms means the continuous provision of fiscal and macroeconomic stability,
along with increased efficiency of utilization of public funds, aiming at improving the quality
of the public services.

The 2003 fiscal budget projected a 20 per cent growth of revenues and the maintaining of
the budget deficit below 6 per cent of Gross Domestic Product. The performance of fiscal
indicators was evaluated as sufficiently positive to maintain macroeconomic stability, but it
revealed a lower than projected contribution to the economic activity. While the budget
deficit was kept within the limit, resulting in the sustentation of the general macroeconomic
equilibrium and particularly contributing to the control of inflation rate, the fiscal policy failed
to meet the revenue objective. The collected revenues were only 93 per cent of the projected
ones, consequently shrinking the expenditures to 90 per cent of the projected level.

TTTTTable II.7   Fable II.7   Fable II.7   Fable II.7   Fable II.7   Fiscal indicators as a percentage of GDPiscal indicators as a percentage of GDPiscal indicators as a percentage of GDPiscal indicators as a percentage of GDPiscal indicators as a percentage of GDP

10 The figure includes even the proceeds from privatization.
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In nominal terms, the revenues and the expenditures grew individually by 11 and 4 per cent
compared to the respective figures in 2002, counting respectively for 22.4 and 26.9 per cent
of nominal GDP. The budget deficit was 19 per cent lower then in the previous year, being
4.4 per cent of GDP.

II.4.1 REVENUES

The strategic objective of the fiscal policy of 2003 on revenue collection was the consolidation
of tax base, accompanied by the creation of a favorable environment for economic
development. The budget revenues trajectory revealed continuous positive growth, even
though they failed achieving the 20 per cent projected increase. The revenues marked an 11
per cent increase compared to 2002. The tax and customs revenues keep having the largest
contribution in the gross state earnings. On the other hand, the general failure to meet the
revenue objective was explicitly due to lower than projected value-added tax proceeds,
which were collected at 93 per cent of the intended amount.

TTTTTable II.8  Historical structure of the budget revenues (%)able II.8  Historical structure of the budget revenues (%)able II.8  Historical structure of the budget revenues (%)able II.8  Historical structure of the budget revenues (%)able II.8  Historical structure of the budget revenues (%)

The excise tax revenues, revenues from the local government and income tax revenues
were the only earnings categories that exceeded the projected level.

II.4.2 BUDGET EXPENDITURES

The budget expenditure objective was attained at 89.6 per cent level, marking a 4 per cent
growth compared to one year earlier. The main category that failed reaching the projected
level was the capital expenditures. The incurred monthly capital expenditures were far from
the planned amount, thus limiting their contribution to the country’s economic growth.
These expenses were only 62 per cent of the intended amount, mainly attributed to lack of
foreign funding. Domestic funding counted for 86 per cent of financing the capital expenditure,
almost double of the foreign financing which was limited to 43 per cent. Conversely, the
current expenditures were within the planned quantity, although they were particularly
accelerated by the end of the year, especially in the salary expenditures.
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TTTTTable II.9 Attained level of the projected expenditures for 2003 (%)able II.9 Attained level of the projected expenditures for 2003 (%)able II.9 Attained level of the projected expenditures for 2003 (%)able II.9 Attained level of the projected expenditures for 2003 (%)able II.9 Attained level of the projected expenditures for 2003 (%)

II.4.3 BUDGET DEFICIT

The lower governmental spending condensed the budget deficit to 76 per cent of the
forecasted level. The end of the year figure was ALL 32.8 billion or 19 per cent less than in
the previous year. The 2003 budget deficit was projected to be covered 51 per cent from
domestic financing and 43 per cent from foreign funding. Nonetheless, the domestic financing
reckoned 73 per cent of total finances and the rest of 27 per cent was provided by foreign
institutions.

The increase of domestic financing was realized via expanding the portfolio of government
securities, whose main investors remained the commercial banks.

II.5  INFLATION DEVELOPMENTS AND MONETARY POLICY

Inflation rate of 2003 fell within the Bank of Albania targeted band. At year-end, 12-month
inflation rate stood at 3.3 per cent, while the average annual rate during the year was
measured at 2.37 per cent.

TTTTTable II.10  Annual inflation rate (in percentage)able II.10  Annual inflation rate (in percentage)able II.10  Annual inflation rate (in percentage)able II.10  Annual inflation rate (in percentage)able II.10  Annual inflation rate (in percentage)
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In 2003 price changes have been more stable than in the previous year. Except for the first
quarter, annual inflation rate has ranged within the 2-4 per cent band. Also, on average
terms, the annual rate has declined, approaching to the lower limit of this band.

Chart II.5 Annual inflation rate (in percentage)Chart II.5 Annual inflation rate (in percentage)Chart II.5 Annual inflation rate (in percentage)Chart II.5 Annual inflation rate (in percentage)Chart II.5 Annual inflation rate (in percentage)

Meeting the Bank of Albania inflation target by holding it within 2-4 per cent has led to
positive developments in all sectors of economy. It helped sustaining macroeconomic
equilibrium and financial system stability. Following low inflation rate, the real interest rate
has remained positive, enabling the banking system to attract savings and channel them
into financing the needs of economy.

II.5.1 PRICE CHANGES OF THE BASKET

Inflation performance has been shaped by the price changes in “Food and non-alcoholic
beverages” item. This item11 has contributed the most to annual inflation rate, especially during
May – September period. In this year, the introduction of domestic products in the market did
not generate the same effect on overall inflation as the last year. Demand for consumer goods
increased due to large tourism activity, and the seasonal effect on inflation weakened. The
contribution of “Rent, water, fuel and energy” item has been at moderate levels during the first
months of 2003. However, increasing energy price in May and the rent price rise in August and
October added the contribution of this item to overall inflation rate. As the price of rent rose, so
did that of imputed rent, which was recalculated in October by Institute of Statistics (see Box 1.)

TTTTTable II.10 Contribution of baskable II.10 Contribution of baskable II.10 Contribution of baskable II.10 Contribution of baskable II.10 Contribution of basket items (in percentage points)et items (in percentage points)et items (in percentage points)et items (in percentage points)et items (in percentage points)

11 The “Food and non-alcoholic beverages” item occupies 42.6 per cent in the CPI basket.
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The contribution of other items of the basket has been moderate during 2003.The contribution of other items of the basket has been moderate during 2003.The contribution of other items of the basket has been moderate during 2003.The contribution of other items of the basket has been moderate during 2003.The contribution of other items of the basket has been moderate during 2003.

Increasing the price of fixed phone tariffs in December influenced the inflation rate of this
item and its contribution to overall inflation. Annual inflation rate increased by 0.67 pp., as
a result of a 67 per cent increase of phone tariffs.

Oil price fluctuation in the international market affected the price of oil in the domestic
market and consequently, transportation prices moved up during the first quarter. In the
following months, this outcome smoothed out.

Chart II.6 Annual inflation of four main items of CPI basket (in percentage)Chart II.6 Annual inflation of four main items of CPI basket (in percentage)Chart II.6 Annual inflation of four main items of CPI basket (in percentage)Chart II.6 Annual inflation of four main items of CPI basket (in percentage)Chart II.6 Annual inflation of four main items of CPI basket (in percentage)

In the second half of the year, the wages in education and payments for health service
changed upwards, causing slightly the rise of annual inflation rate.
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Box 1  Recalculating the index of “Rent, water, fuel & energy” item

In December 2001, the basket used to calculate consumer price index changed. Changes
consisted in adding new consumer items and recalculating the weight of each item in the
total basket in order to represent better the real situation of Albanian households.

One of the added items was the imputed rent, which accounts for a considerable share in
the basket (17 per cent.) Imputed rent is the potential rent (potential consumption) that an
Albanian pays. It can be understood as the rent that could be paid if one had to live in a
dwelling that is not his/hers. The method of calculating the imputed rent had a couple of
problems. Before October 2003, imputed rent was calculated as weighted average of all
items included in “Rent, water, fuel & energy” group. Consequently, a rise in the price of
the items in the group was counted twice with regards to total inflation. As soon as this
inaccuracy was recognized, the method for calculating the index of this group was revised.
The new changes made in October 2003 base the calculation of imputed rent on the
normal rent price.

Revising the index for imputed rent changed also the total price index, making it drop by
0.6-1 pp for 2003. The following chart displays annual inflation rate during 2003 based on
both methods.

Chart 1 Annual inflation rate based on the old and current methodChart 1 Annual inflation rate based on the old and current methodChart 1 Annual inflation rate based on the old and current methodChart 1 Annual inflation rate based on the old and current methodChart 1 Annual inflation rate based on the old and current method

Based on the new method, inflation rate has moved within the Bank of Albania targeted
band.
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II.5.2 FACTORS THAT HAVE INFLUENCED PRICE INFLATION

As the objectives of the country’s economic development program were observed, favorable
conditions to control inflation were in place. Domestic demand was kept under control and
monetary indicators were stable.

BUDGET EXPENDITURES AND BUDGET DEFICIT
Budget expenditures were measured at a lower level than the annual projection. This has
pushed down inflationary pressures, since budget expenditures are part of domestic demand.
Moreover, expenditures spread more evenly over the year compared to the previous years.
The tense political situation and local elections of October have not been followed by shaking
of fiscal policy, i.e. increasing expenditures and aggravating budget deficit. As expenditures
have not been concentrated at specific points in time, large price fluctuations have been
avoided, facilitating the control of budget financing and movement of liquidity in the economy.

Chart II.7 Monthly budget expenditures (as a percentage of GDP)Chart II.7 Monthly budget expenditures (as a percentage of GDP)Chart II.7 Monthly budget expenditures (as a percentage of GDP)Chart II.7 Monthly budget expenditures (as a percentage of GDP)Chart II.7 Monthly budget expenditures (as a percentage of GDP)

The government has met the projection of domestic financing for 2003. Financing from
domestic sources fell to 2.7 per cent of GDP, compared to 3.2 per cent of GDP in the last
year. Keeping budget deficit under control has brought down pressures on monetary
indicators and has released funds to credit the economy. Budget deficit was financed from
savings of economy and the Bank of Albania did not contribute to this.

MONETARY POLICY AND INDICATORS
Monetary policy of the Bank of Albania has followed an easing trend during 2003. It has
aimed at lowering the cost of borrowing in economy under the conditions of an acceptable
inflation and stable financial system. Furthermore, it was necessary to take steps to ease
monetary policy in order to make up for the raise of interest rate in 2002.

During the first half of 2003 the Bank of Albania took only one move to loosen its monetary
policy. It lowered reference interest rate by 0.5 pp in April. In view of increasing inflation and
stability of monetary indicators, which was still fragile, the Bank of Albania tried to take a
cautious stance. Later, as inflation remained stable within the target band of 2-4 per cent,
the Bank of Albania cut interest rates three times by 0.5 pp each in July, October and
December. At the end of the year, reference interest rate stood at 6.5 per cent, being the
lowest in the last four years.
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Chart II.8 Reference interest rateChart II.8 Reference interest rateChart II.8 Reference interest rateChart II.8 Reference interest rateChart II.8 Reference interest rate

Interest rates difference has favored the further appreciation of ALL, adding to a large
demand for financial assets denominated in ALL. In line with its monetary policy, the Bank
of Albania has been present in the foreign exchange market buying foreign currency. As a
result of such interventions, a total of ALL 6.2 billion was injected in the market.

Cuts of reference interest rate did not have a negative effect on inflation and monetary
indicators. Monetary policy stance has tried to carefully foster the achievement of performance
criteria and projections set in the monetary program. The Bank of Albania has been prudent,
trying to keep real interest rates at positive levels, drawing public interest in deposits and
keeping an eye on banking system liquidity.

Monetary indicatorsMonetary indicatorsMonetary indicatorsMonetary indicatorsMonetary indicators have developed in accordance with expectations. Monetary
aggregates showed stable growth and within projected values; ALL deposits and currency
outside banks showed a stable trend, providing a steady level of liquidity.

Chart II.9 Annual growth rate of M1 and M3 (in percentage)Chart II.9 Annual growth rate of M1 and M3 (in percentage)Chart II.9 Annual growth rate of M1 and M3 (in percentage)Chart II.9 Annual growth rate of M1 and M3 (in percentage)Chart II.9 Annual growth rate of M1 and M3 (in percentage)

FFFFForeign exchange rateoreign exchange rateoreign exchange rateoreign exchange rateoreign exchange rate has been characterized by appreciation of ALL against two main
currencies, euro and USD. ALL appreciation has smoothed down the effect of imported
inflation on total inflation and has kept population expectations for inflation low. In particular,
appreciation trend has been more obvious during the second half of the year, when ALL
appreciated by 3.8 per cent against euro and by 7.8 per cent against USD.
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Chart II.10 Nominal effective rate of ALL in 2003Chart II.10 Nominal effective rate of ALL in 2003Chart II.10 Nominal effective rate of ALL in 2003Chart II.10 Nominal effective rate of ALL in 2003Chart II.10 Nominal effective rate of ALL in 2003

Inflation developments have been affected also by the increase of administrativeInflation developments have been affected also by the increase of administrativeInflation developments have been affected also by the increase of administrativeInflation developments have been affected also by the increase of administrativeInflation developments have been affected also by the increase of administrative
prices and supply shocks.prices and supply shocks.prices and supply shocks.prices and supply shocks.prices and supply shocks.

• Oil priceOil priceOil priceOil priceOil price increased from US$26 per barrel in December 2002 to US$32 in March
2003 due to Iraq war. Contribution of “Transportation” item to total annual inflation
increased considerably up to 0.31 pp in March. In May this effect extenuated (this
item’s contribution to inflation dropped to 0.16 pp) as a result of OPEC’s decision to
place a higher limit for their maximum oil production and to reduce reference oil price.

• Agriculture sectorAgriculture sectorAgriculture sectorAgriculture sectorAgriculture sector produced less than it was previously expected from the Ministry
of Agriculture. Low temperatures of April, long droughts in summer and increasing
exports of agricultural and stock products during January – August have been factors,
which have reduced domestic supply in the market12. In addition, tourism expanded
largely. Therefore, the seasonal effect in summer, which contributes to reduce prices
in this period, had a smaller effect in 2003.

• Increased cost of raw materialsIncreased cost of raw materialsIncreased cost of raw materialsIncreased cost of raw materialsIncreased cost of raw materials affected the price rise. Production price index13

marked high figures during 2003. High input prices at first steps of production
were carried forward into high prices of final production.

Chart II.11 Production price indexChart II.11 Production price indexChart II.11 Production price indexChart II.11 Production price indexChart II.11 Production price index

12 Source: Ministry of Food and Agriculture. The projection on the growth of agricultural production in July was reduced
by 0.2 pp. The drought reduced the wheat and vegetable harvest by respectively about 20 thousand tons and 10
thousand tons less than the projection of 2003. Also, for the period of January – August 2003, export of agricultural and
farming products was 12 per cent higher than in the previous year.
13 This index calculated by Institute of Statistics measures the raw material price and intermediate ones, based on the
surveys to 600 productive enterprises.
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• Imported inflation Imported inflation Imported inflation Imported inflation Imported inflation from partner countries has pushed up prices of consumption
products in the Albanian market. This factor takes a special significance, given that
domestic demand is mostly met by imported products. Our economy, being a
developing one and with a narrow production base, remains oriented to imports14.
Our main trading partners are Italy and Greece. Imports from these countries account
respectively for 34 and 21 per cent of total imports. On the other hand, both these
countries have registered high inflation rates15.

TTTTTable II.11 Annual inflation rate of main trading partners (in percentage).able II.11 Annual inflation rate of main trading partners (in percentage).able II.11 Annual inflation rate of main trading partners (in percentage).able II.11 Annual inflation rate of main trading partners (in percentage).able II.11 Annual inflation rate of main trading partners (in percentage).

Another particular factor that needs to be mentioned is the resultant campaign to prevent
the speculative price rise during the end year holidays. The outcome of this campaign is
reflected not only in the fact that prices in December were increased by a small rate, but
also in inducing public awareness about the positive effect that a normal consumer and
business behavior has on price changes (see Box 2.)

            
            

            

Box 2 Campaign to prevent speculative price changes

Maintaining price stability is the main objective of Bank of Albania. In order to follow this
objective, apart from implementing an appropriate and cautious monetary policy, the Bank
of Albania uses also other means to increase the efficiency of its decisions. One of the
means is also the communication with public via the campaign to reduce speculations with
price peaks during end year holidays. For the second consecutive year, the Bank of Albania
organized such a campaign. Speculations resulting from lack of competition, appropriate
fiscal control, and a model of buying behavior, which makes demand inelastic, bring prices
up even in a sufficient supply. The Bank of Albania, being sensitive to the harmful outcome
of such happening on overall economy, household’s economy and the fulfillment of Bank’s
objective, started a cooperation with government authorities, business community, civil society
and media, in order to educate the public and increase the transparency and effectiveness
of its own decisions.

The main focus of the campaign and its success as well was to increase public awareness.
Higher prices during end year holidays have become part of the mentality and have gained
general acceptance. From a survey conducted by the Bank of Albania, it turned out that 92
per cent of the population expected prices to rise during December. A consumer with such
expectations can be a drive for prices to actually go up. Advising the consumers not to buy
in excess, was coupled with advising businesses to increase their profits by increasing the
volume of sales as well as urging tax officers to be firm on tax collections.

14 During the first nine-month period, import was about 4 times higher than export.
15 In 2003 the average HCPI inflation rate of Italy and Greece was respectively 2.8 per cent and 3.5 per cent. These rates
are higher than the average inflation rate of euro area, by 2.1 per cent. Source: Eurostat.
16 Source: Ministry of Industry and Energy.
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II.6 BALANCE OF PAYMENTS

II.6.1 MAIN DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BALANCE OF PAYMENTS

At the end of 2003 current account deficit was estimated at USD 407 million or 6.7 per cent
of GDP. The share of current account to GDP has narrowed considerably compared to previous
year when the ratio stood at 8.7 per cent. The gap narrowed by USD 13 million, due to
positive balance of income and current transfers.

As part of this campaign, the Bank of Albania was monitoring prices of food products on daily
bases. Various analyses and surveys indicate that prices of these products, which count for
a large part of CPI, reflect the effect of speculative price increases. Price of fruits and vegetables
were increased considerably during season’s holidays. Wholesale market was the main
contributor, driving prices up in the whole process of selling these products.

Chart 1 Price developments in different marketsChart 1 Price developments in different marketsChart 1 Price developments in different marketsChart 1 Price developments in different marketsChart 1 Price developments in different markets

The campaign for prevention of speculative increase of prices showed its results in December.
Monthly inflation for food products stood lower than in the previous years.

TTTTTable 1 Monthly inflation rate (December) of “able 1 Monthly inflation rate (December) of “able 1 Monthly inflation rate (December) of “able 1 Monthly inflation rate (December) of “able 1 Monthly inflation rate (December) of “ fruits” and “fruits” and “fruits” and “fruits” and “fruits” and “vegetables”vegetables”vegetables”vegetables”vegetables”

However, the outcome of such campaigns is carried forward over long periods of time. In the
short term, the campaign had an impact on smoothing down the negative effects of speculation
on monthly inflation rate of December 2003. Compared to four previous years, monthly
inflation for “Fruits” and “Vegetables” in December 2003 recorded lower values.

In the long term, the outcome of this campaign relates to the raising of public awareness and
education. The results of the campaign were a reward for the good will, time, energy and
commitment of the Bank of Albania.
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Net capital flows account for around 90 per cent of current deficit. Albania’s financial liabilities
to nonresidents have increased by USD 328 million. They stand almost entirely for foreign
direct investments and official and private borrowings. Residents’ assets abroad namely
deposits, portfolio investments and foreign currency marked a positive change compared
to last year.

Chart II.12 Current deficit as percentage of GDPChart II.12 Current deficit as percentage of GDPChart II.12 Current deficit as percentage of GDPChart II.12 Current deficit as percentage of GDPChart II.12 Current deficit as percentage of GDP

In 2003 USD depreciated considerably against euro and ALL. Given that most of transactions
between residents and not-residents are made in euro and not in USD – the currency which
denominates balance of payment accounts, analyses of balance of payments should provide
for exchange rate effect. Consequently, trade deficit estimated in euro has decreased by
3.4 per cent in 2003, while if estimated in USD, trade deficit has increased by 15.7 per cent.
The same holds true for other items of current account or capital and financial account.

II.6.2 CURRENT ACCOUNT

Current transactions amounted to USD 5 billion during 2003. Around 2.7 billion are
expenditures on purchase of goods and services by non-residents. Income item in current
account has been mostly supplied by current transfers (40 per cent), services to non-residents
(32 per cent) and exports (20 per cent.) Current account deficit registered a value of USD
407 million during 2003. This figure is lower than that of 2002 even if we do not provide for
the exchange rate effect.
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TTTTTable II.13 Current account items during 2002 and 2003 (USD millions)able II.13 Current account items during 2002 and 2003 (USD millions)able II.13 Current account items during 2002 and 2003 (USD millions)able II.13 Current account items during 2002 and 2003 (USD millions)able II.13 Current account items during 2002 and 2003 (USD millions)

The deep trade deficit was partly covered from surplus of income and current transfers
accounts. Though in relative terms imports calculated in USD increased at a smaller rate
than exports, trade deficit in 2003 stood at USD 180 million higher than that in 2002. Annual
change by 16 percent has been caused mainly from the exchange rate effects.

In 2003 both income and expenditures in the balance of services have increased. It is worth
noting that expenditures have marked a higher growth rate than income. The balance of this
account was rounded with a deficit of USD 83 million, while during the previous years it
was in surplus.

Due to having similar sources, income account displays the same trend as that of current
transfers account. A positive aspect of this account is the increase of interest income from
investments of residents abroad.

Current transfers account shows the same sign and composition as in previous years,
being dominated by remittances. These make for 84 per cent of inflows in this account, a
share a bit lower than that of 2002, when flows from remittances made 94 per cent of total
current transfers.

MERCHANDISE TRADE
Trade of goods marked a volume worth USD 2.2 billion, equal to 22.8 per cent higher than
in 2002. Trade transactions represent 54 per cent of all transactions of Albania with the rest
of the world. Expenditures on imports reached USD 1.8 billion, being USD 289 million (or 20
per cent) higher than those in the previous year. Income from exports recorded a figure of
USD 447 million and an annual growth rate of 35 per cent. Albanian economy remains
oriented towards imports, which account for 80 per cent of overall foreign trade volume. In
2003 trade deficit reached USD 1.3 billion, being 16 per cent higher than that of the last
year. Even though exports increased by a higher yearly rate than previously (USD 117 million)
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total exports volume covers only 25 per cent of all imports. The main reasons for the
unsatisfactory developments in exports can be found in the low competitiveness of Albanian
products in the international markets. Therefore, Albanian exporters cannot fully benefit
from the advantages of Free Trade Agreements. Foreign demand for Albanian products,
specially that from EU countries, has remained at the same level during the last two-three
years, thanks to the slow world economic development.

Chart II.13 Imports and Exports Growth (Index. 1996=100)Chart II.13 Imports and Exports Growth (Index. 1996=100)Chart II.13 Imports and Exports Growth (Index. 1996=100)Chart II.13 Imports and Exports Growth (Index. 1996=100)Chart II.13 Imports and Exports Growth (Index. 1996=100)

Despite their small volume, exports have signaled the improvement of processing industry
in the country. The main contribution has come from re-exporting (exports of ordered products)
which account for 77 per cent of total volume of Albanian exports. Exports of domestic
products increased by 16 per cent in 2003. They account for 22.5 per cent of total exports.
Despite this positive evidence, the structure of exports suffers from low diversification.

After six years, in 2003 the price of chrome in international market increased, giving an
opportunity to develop to the mining industry of chrome in Albania. The price of ferrochrome
in the international market (around US$600 per ton) led to increasing Albanian chrome exports.
Income from export of metals in 2003 stood 61 per cent higher than in 2002. Currently, there
are 109 private entities operating in this activity16.

TTTTTable II.13 Imports by groups of merchandiseable II.13 Imports by groups of merchandiseable II.13 Imports by groups of merchandiseable II.13 Imports by groups of merchandiseable II.13 Imports by groups of merchandise

16 Source: Ministry of Industry and Energy.
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Trade imports have recorded considerable growth in all group items. An encouraging
development relates to higher imports of capital goods that are employed in different
production processes. The greatest contribution has come from imports of machinery and
equipment, which marked a yearly growth of 18 per cent and make a considerable share in
total imports. The performance of imports of this group is an indicator of investments in the
country. The largest volume of imports has been recorded in the group of IT and
communication equipment (electronic media, communication waves) and equipment needed
for reconstruction of power transmission network in the country.

Despite the continuous rise of oil price in international markets, domestic demand remained
high. Imported oil in 2003 was 19 per cent higher than that in 2002. As domestic production
of energy improved, import of this item decreased compared to that in the previous year.
Imports of energy in 2003 amounted to 561 kWh less than the previous year, thus decreasing
expenditures by 17 per cent.

Unfavorable climatic conditions for agricultural products led to higher imports of these
products (by 18 per cent), especially of cereal, fruits and vegetables. Imports of food,
alcohol and tobacco remained high, marking an increase of 21 per cent compared to last
year. Here, it should be noted that imported tobacco has increased by 29 per cent, apparently
as a result of attempts to prevent fiscal evasion. Continuing these attempts in the future will
have an impact on the registered imports of items subject to excise.

Imports of raw material for active processing (textile, footwear and metals) increased by 34
per cent. The trend of this group reflects the developments noticed in the re-export sector.
Geographically, Albanian trade activity stayed oriented towards countries of the European
Union. Trade exchanges with this group account for 68 per cent of total imports and 93 per
cent of total exports. Italy and Greece represent the main partners in this group. Imports
and exports with this group have expanded further. Meanwhile, trade with Southeastern
European countries, which are included in the process of establishing free trade zones
seems to be limited. Trade with these countries displays a random behavior rather than a
genuine trading model.

TTTTTable II.14 Imports by trading partnersable II.14 Imports by trading partnersable II.14 Imports by trading partnersable II.14 Imports by trading partnersable II.14 Imports by trading partners
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Expected outcome from liberalization of trade among countries of Southeastern Europe can
be viewed in different ways. Trade liberalization implies not only changes in business
environment, which promotes the expansion of possibilities to export and increase
competitiveness, but also changes in the social and cultural behavior of the countries involved.

TTTTTable II.15 Exports by trading partnersable II.15 Exports by trading partnersable II.15 Exports by trading partnersable II.15 Exports by trading partnersable II.15 Exports by trading partners

BALANCE OF SERVICES
Year 2003 was characterized by a high deficit in service account. Net exports of services for
2003 was reckoned at USD -82.7 million, being much higher than that of USD -5.2 million
recorded in 2002. The deficit of 2003 marks a turn in this account, which has registered
continuous surplus during 1999-2001. Also, this year’s deficit has been the highest since
1993. Inflows from services increased by 23 per cent while expenditures increased by 36
per cent. Main items included in the services between Albania and rest of the world are:
travel service, transportation service, insurance service, etc. The main share of total services,
either debit or credit is carried by travel services. This item is characterized by a rapid
increase of expenditures compared to income. Transportation and insurance services related
to goods show the same pattern of development as that of trade of goods.

“Other services” has recorded a deficit of USD 10 million, being remotely far from the USD
30 million surplus at the end of 2002. The deficit of this year has been caused by increasing
expenditures on technical assistance that our country receives from abroad. During 2003,
these expenditures have amounted to USD 44 million. A positive development in the group
of “other services” relates to communication services. Like in the previous year, this item
has generated more revenue than occurred expenditures, bringing a net of 27 million USD
in the current account. Lately, telecommunication services have taken a bursting development,
fueling contacts with non-residents. These trends bring up the need for a larger base of
telecommunication entities to obtain information on balance of payments.

Concluding the analysis of merchandise trade and services, it should be emphasized that
the degree of economic opening of Albania is estimated to be 61 per cent, or 1 pp smaller
than in 2002, leaving enough room for improvement compared to other regional countries.

INCOME AND CURRENT TRANSFERS
Income account has ended the year with a positive balance of 170 million USD. Inflows in
this account have been clearly higher than in the last year, while the difference of outflows
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has been small. It has been noted that income from employee compensations and
investments has increased. Income from employee compensations is affected by evaluation
of remittances, given that part of the latter is classified as income from seasonal and
border workers. Consequently, inflows from current private transfers have been also reflected
in inflows from work or employee compensations. The latter has totaled to USD 110 million
in 2003, being USD 22 million higher than in 2002. Residents’ investments abroad – being
portfolio investments, reserve investments and others, have generated interest income of
USD 84 million.

Current transfers have been shaped from remittances, showing similarity with the
development in the previous years. These represent the main source for financing goods
and services deficit and have been estimated at a total of USD 778 million for 2003 (23 per
cent higher than in 2002.) However, bearing in mind the currencies in which these transfers
occur, it could be argued that exchange rate effect has had a considerable impact on this
item.

II.6.3  CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL ACCOUNT

Around 88 per cent of current deficit was financed by net capital inflows, which recorded a
value of USD 360 million at the end of the year. This positive figure has been fed by capital
transfers of USD 157 million – 29 per cent higher than a year ago – as well as positive
balance of USD 202 million of financial account. Capital imports, being an outcome of
attracting foreign direct investments and extension of long-term loans, have added USD
328 million to financial liabilities of Albania to the rest of the world. This amount is 22 per
cent higher than a year ago.

In 2003 expansion of financial liabilities is presented in the form of foreign direct investments,
credit lines, deposits of banking system in nonresident banks and institutions, as well as
commercial loans.

Chart II.14 Balance of payments structureChart II.14 Balance of payments structureChart II.14 Balance of payments structureChart II.14 Balance of payments structureChart II.14 Balance of payments structure
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17 E llogaritur si raport i vëllimit tregtar në mallra dhe shërbime ndaj PBB-së.

In 2003 foreign direct investments are reckoned at USD 178 million or 32 per cent higher
than in 2002. These capital flows have turned into a dominant factor in building up financial
liabilities and in the performance of capital and financial transactions. They account for 54
per cent of positive balance of financial account.

Another important factor in adding up financial liabilities in 2003 relates to the extension of
long term credits and soft credits from abroad, which have contributed to the foreign debt
of Albania by USD 155.5 million. This debt included also the use of loans and credits of
USD 11 million from IMF. The Albanian Government has already used a major part of these
loans. The World Bank still appears to be the main financer of government through the
International Development Agency (IDA). Foreign debt service in the form of payments of
principal totaled to USD 43.6 million.

Liabilities as deposits of non-residents in our banking system have increased by 19 million
USD in 2003 (2.2 times more than in 2002.) This outcome was the result of the exchange
rate effect (12 million USD), given that 80 per cent of the deposits is in euro, 15 per cent in
USD and 5 per cent in other currencies. Liabilities as commercial credit increased by USD
11 million or 64 per cent more than in the last year. The change was reflected also in the rise
of imports during 2003.

Albania’s financial claims to the rest of the world increased by 126 million USD or twice as
much as in 2002. The major contribution has come from cash in foreign currency. Unlike the
previous year when foreign currency held by the public decreased, this year it increased by
USD 35 million.

At this point, the effect of foreign exchange rate needs to be mentioned. Of all foreign
assets of the banking system in the country, only 28 per cent are in US currency, the rest are
in euro (66 per cent), British pound (4 per cent) and Swiss franc (2 per cent).

Domestic deposits in the foreign banking system increased by the same extent as foreign
assets in cash. In its composition as of end 2003, deposits in US dollar accounted for 52
per cent and those in euro for 46 per cent. The stock of financial assets classified as
portfolio investments amounted to USD 142 million and it recorded an annual increase of
USD 26 million.

II.6.4 FOREIGN RESERVES

The foreign assets proceeds, mainly the financial proceeds from foreign credit disbursements
and credit utilization, influenced the foreign reserve growth by USD 99 million. By the end of
2003, the gross foreign reserves of the monetary authority amounted to USD 1025.6 million.
This level of reserves is considered sufficient to cover 4.7 months of imports of goods and
services.
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Chart II.15 Movements of FChart II.15 Movements of FChart II.15 Movements of FChart II.15 Movements of FChart II.15 Movements of Foreign Roreign Roreign Roreign Roreign Reserves in Months of Importseserves in Months of Importseserves in Months of Importseserves in Months of Importseserves in Months of Imports

TTTTTable II.16 Balance of Pable II.16 Balance of Pable II.16 Balance of Pable II.16 Balance of Pable II.16 Balance of Payments (USD millions)ayments (USD millions)ayments (USD millions)ayments (USD millions)ayments (USD millions)
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II.7  FOREIGN RESERVE AND ITS ADMINISTRATION

The gross amount of the foreign exchange reserves met the USD 1.03 billion level in December
2003. During 2003 the foreign reserves grew by USD 186.62 million, or equal to 22 per cent.
The factors that can be mentioned as the main contributor to the reserve growth are presented
below:

• Disbursement of the loans extended by the International Monetary Fund, International
Development Agency and other international institutions summing at USD 68.05
million;

• Purchase of foreign currency from commercial banks and Ministry of Finance
amounting at USD 87.80 million;

• Required reserves sediment from commercial banks to Bank of Albania totaling
USD 28.08 million dollars;

• Income from the investment of foreign reserves recorded USD 1.04 million higher
than the respective figure last year.

The purchases of foreign currency from commercial banks were conducted in accordance
with the general monetary policy framework. Alongside the foreign currency purchases
from Ministry of Finance, they are considered as the main contributors to the growth of
foreign exchange reserves. In addition, the 20 per cent Euro appreciation against the USA
dollar, affected the gross reserve amount by USD 87 million.

On the other hand, the debits of foreign reserves marked USD 127.23 million, consisting of
USD 83.65 million transfers ordered by Ministry of Finance and commercial banks and USD
43.57 million instalments of government foreign debt.

As concerns the regulatory framework of reserve administration, the Supervisory Council
approval of the yearly amendments of the regulation on “Foreign Reserves Administration
Policy and Methodology” must be mentioned. The periodical revision of this regulation
aims at designing a more flexible administration of international reserves through introducing
alternative investment ways. This year amendments, which were formulated referencing
the best practices of international central banks, presented a new strategy of foreign reserve
investments as well as a reorganization of the existing investment portfolios. Along with the
active control structures and risk management procedures, the amended regulation is
expected to improve the administration of foreign reserves through satisfying the
predetermined objectives, increasing safety liquidity and investments performance.
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CHAPTER III.  MONETCHAPTER III.  MONETCHAPTER III.  MONETCHAPTER III.  MONETCHAPTER III.  MONETARARARARARY DEVELOPMENTS ANDY DEVELOPMENTS ANDY DEVELOPMENTS ANDY DEVELOPMENTS ANDY DEVELOPMENTS AND
MONEY MARKETSMONEY MARKETSMONEY MARKETSMONEY MARKETSMONEY MARKETS

III.1 MONETARY PROGRAM AND THE QUANTITATIVE OBJECTIVES

The Bank of Albania monetary policy has been oriented towards inflation objective. In line
with this policy, the Bank of Albania aims at overseeing the monetary conditions of

economy, so that it can accomplish the medium term inflation objective. The projections of
monetary developments are summarized in the annual monetary program framework. In
this light, the monetary program defines the direction towards which the monetary indicators
should move, in order to accomplish the primary objective of Bank of Albania. The monetary
program is also a means that can control and evaluate the progress of monetary indicators
and accordingly program necessary interventions.

In drafting the monetary program for 2003, the Bank of Albania have mainly consisted in the
decreasing of the currency outside banks to money supply ratio and the reallocation of
deposits towards longer maturities. Year 2003 was also characterized by a substantial
difference between the Albanian ALL interest rate and those of foreign currencies, which
contributed to domestic currency appreciation.

The Bank of Albania revised its monetary program in October 2003, in order to adjust it
better to the country’s macroeconomic developments. The increase of economy demand
for assets brought about a change in the projections for money supply growth at the end of
2003, from 8.4 percent to 9.5 percent. At the same time, the forecast of the ratio of currency
outside banks to M3 was decreased to 28.3 percent. The Bank of Albania also revised its
projections of the banking system credit to the government as well as the composition of
the growth of outstanding credit in foreign and domestic currency.

TTTTTable III.1 able III.1 able III.1 able III.1 able III.1 Aggregates Aggregates Aggregates Aggregates Aggregates visvisvisvisvis -à-vis  the program (-à-vis  the program (-à-vis  the program (-à-vis  the program (-à-vis  the program (ALLALLALLALLALL billion) bill ion) bill ion) bill ion) bill ion)

The monetary indicators developments during 2003 have followed the monetary program’s
projections. The differences between the current values and those forecasted are minuscule.
Some of the most important differences are:

   
   

   

   

   

   

   



50

• Annual growth of money supply at the end of 2003 was 8.7 percent compared to
9.5 percent forecasted in the program.

The annual growth of money supply under the monetary projections was caused by Albanian
Lek appreciation during 2003. This appreciation has resulted in a lower value of foreign
currency deposits when converted into domestic currency. The annual growth rate of foreign
currency deposits was 6.6 percent compared to the forecasted 12.1 percent. The exchange
rate effect has decreased the value of foreign currency deposits by 13.4 billion ALL.

• Currency outside banks at the end of December was slightly below expectations,
while the ALL deposits exceeded the monetary program forecast.

Liquidity developments closely followed expectations, mainly due to the reduction of currency
outside banks, while the monetary base and M1 aggregate stood below the monetary
program projections.

The quantitative objectives of the Bank of Albania have been satisfied all along 2003.

TTTTTable III.2 Quantitative objectives of the Bank of Albaniaable III.2 Quantitative objectives of the Bank of Albaniaable III.2 Quantitative objectives of the Bank of Albaniaable III.2 Quantitative objectives of the Bank of Albaniaable III.2 Quantitative objectives of the Bank of Albania

III.1 MONEY SUPPLY AND ITS COMPONENTS

In the course of 2003 the annual pace of money supply growth increased constantly, only
to stabilize towards the end of the year. Due to the Bank of Albania’s easing monetary

policy, the money supply growth revisited its historical growth rate and stood at levels that
assure a normal supply of money to economy.
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Chart III.1 Annual growth rate performance of money supplyChart III.1 Annual growth rate performance of money supplyChart III.1 Annual growth rate performance of money supplyChart III.1 Annual growth rate performance of money supplyChart III.1 Annual growth rate performance of money supply

III.2.1 DEVELOPMENTS OF MONEY SUPPLY STRUCTURE

From the liquidity viewpoint, the money supply components have revealed changes that
have mainly reflected a coming back to equilibrium from the structure distortion caused by
deposit withdrawal of 2002.

The most liquid monetary aggregate, M1, has shown negative growth throughout 2003. By
year-end its annual growth rate reached -5.2 percent. Such developments have been
determined by the progress of currency outside banks, which is its main component. During
2003 there was a substantial decrease of 3.5 percentage points of currency outside banks
to money supply and this marked the lowest level of this indicator for the past four years.

Chart III.2 Chart III.2 Chart III.2 Chart III.2 Chart III.2 Time structure of money supply (M1/M3 rate)Time structure of money supply (M1/M3 rate)Time structure of money supply (M1/M3 rate)Time structure of money supply (M1/M3 rate)Time structure of money supply (M1/M3 rate)

The currency that returned to the system has favored ALL time deposits. By year-end the
latter reached an annual growth of 19.1 per cent, a substantial rise compared to the past
years. Due to this significant increase, the ALL time deposit was the component that
contributed most to money supply growth.
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Graph III.3 Graph III.3 Graph III.3 Graph III.3 Graph III.3 Time structure of money supply performance and real interest ratesTime structure of money supply performance and real interest ratesTime structure of money supply performance and real interest ratesTime structure of money supply performance and real interest ratesTime structure of money supply performance and real interest rates

The rather high real interest rates of ALL deposits have had a positive impact in shifting the
money supply towards less liquid instruments. The annual average inflation rate falling
trend has played an important role in the real interest rate trajectory throughout 2003.

Box III.1 Main factors that influenced the unusual behavior of currency outside banks
during 2003

During 2003 the currency outside banks has behaved differently compared to the previous
years. At year-end it had decreased by approximately 5.6 billion ALL, which is equivalent to
a decline of 4.3 per cent. This unusual behavior is explained by the re-establishment of
equilibrium of the monetary aggregates following the massive withdrawal of deposits in
March-April 2002.

The deposit withdrawal triggered a substantial increase of currency outside banks vis-à-vis
money supply. The aforementioned ratio reflects a very important monetary condition: the
structure of the portfolio of Albanian economy financial assets. The changes in this portfolio
need to be gradual. They should reflect a new reality that takes the form of financial innovations
or an increase of public confidence in the banking system. The growth of this ratio below
historical growth levels was a consequence of a decrease of public confidence in the banking
system due to speculative reasons. Accordingly, the second half of 2002 and 2003 saw a
return of the currency outside banks to the system, which was associated with the decrease
of the absolute amount of currency outside banks, as well as the decrease of the ratio of
currency outside banks to money supply.

Once this was over, at the end of 2003 the ratio of currency outside banks to money supply
was 27.9 per cent, close to the historical average level of the last four years (29.4 per cent).
This ratio is 2.3 percentage points lower than the same period before the crisis.
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III.2.2 DEVELOPMENTS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY STRUCTURE

Compared to the previous years, the contribution of foreign currency component to money
supply growth has been smaller. In 2003 the annual growth of foreign currency deposits
stood at about 12 per cent, as opposed to the last five years average of 18 per cent. The
appreciation of ALL against foreign currencies has brought about a decrease of foreign
currency deposits growth. Once the foreign exchange effect is removed, the annual growth
of foreign currency deposits becomes 21.9 per cent.

The money supply structure has continued to shift towards the foreign currencies. However,
the interest rate difference between ALL instruments and foreign currency ones has brought
forward a public preference for ALL time deposits. Portfolio restructuring has contributed in
the appreciation of ALL vis-à-vis foreign currencies during 2003. These factors have also
smoothed the shifting of monetary assets towards foreign currencies in the second half of
2003 (see chart III.4).

Chart 1 Ratio of currency outside banks to M3 and its annual growthChart 1 Ratio of currency outside banks to M3 and its annual growthChart 1 Ratio of currency outside banks to M3 and its annual growthChart 1 Ratio of currency outside banks to M3 and its annual growthChart 1 Ratio of currency outside banks to M3 and its annual growth

Expectations for 2004 speak for an increase of currency outside banks. This is a normal
phenomenon for a stabilized economy. The increase of money supply is spread among all
of its components, nevertheless the focus of a central bank lies on preserving the liquidity
structure, as well as the foreign currency structure of money supply. In this light, the 2004
projections argue for a relatively stable ratio of currency outside banks to M3, thus playing an
important role in controlling inflationary pressures.

Nonetheless, in the future, a more active participation of commercial banks, which is expected
to introduce new services (such as a widespread use of ATMs), an overall improvement of
macroeconomic environment, a strengthening of fiscal discipline and the introduction of
effective ways to fight fiscal evasion, will encourage a falling trend of this ratio.
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Graph III.4 Graph III.4 Graph III.4 Graph III.4 Graph III.4 PPPPPerformance of foreign currency deposits to broad money ratioerformance of foreign currency deposits to broad money ratioerformance of foreign currency deposits to broad money ratioerformance of foreign currency deposits to broad money ratioerformance of foreign currency deposits to broad money ratio

In the future, the expectations speak for more balanced developments of the foreign currency
structure of money supply. The expected crediting in domestic currency as a result of the
involvement of the Savings Bank in this process will contribute to an increased weight of
the domestic currency in the money supply.

The low levels of interest rates of USD and EUR deposits have not sufficed to prompt the
public to deposit its savings in time deposits. This conclusion can be drawn from the chart
below, where there is a clear break of the growing trend of the ratio of foreign currency time
deposits to total foreign currency deposits.

Graph III.5 Graph III.5 Graph III.5 Graph III.5 Graph III.5 The ratio of foreign currency time deposits to total foreign currencyThe ratio of foreign currency time deposits to total foreign currencyThe ratio of foreign currency time deposits to total foreign currencyThe ratio of foreign currency time deposits to total foreign currencyThe ratio of foreign currency time deposits to total foreign currency
deposits and to the deposits and to the deposits and to the deposits and to the deposits and to the EUREUREUREUREUR and  and  and  and  and USDUSDUSDUSDUSD interest rates interest rates interest rates interest rates interest rates
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Box III.2 Survey on depositing and lending activity of commercial banks in 2003

Last year, the Bank of Albania organized two surveys as part of the efforts of being closer to
the opinions of the commercial banks’ experts on the main developments of the depositing
and lending activities. Approximately 100 experts of all commercial banks from all cities
where these banks exercise their activities were part of this survey. The response level was
95 per cent.

Deposit-collecting activity:Deposit-collecting activity:Deposit-collecting activity:Deposit-collecting activity:Deposit-collecting activity:
The surveys carried out in 2003 revealed that commercial banks believe there is an
improvement in this activity compared to the previous six months. The main factors that
positively impact on deposit-collecting activity are as follows: a growing public confidence in
the banking system, high-quality service, as well as the high level of interest rates.

The interest rate difference between ALL deposits and foreign currency deposits has
supported an increase of ALL deposits and has slowed down the growth of foreign currency
deposits. The easing monetary policy of the Bank of Albania has lowered the ALL deposit
interest rates. Commercial banks’ experts think that the Bank of Albania policy has been
effective in dealing with distortions and in increasing banking system efficiency.

Overall, the bankers were optimistic that deposit collecting would maintain this growing
pace in the first half of 2004. The Savings Bank privatization will further increase the
competition in the banking system.

Lending activity:Lending activity:Lending activity:Lending activity:Lending activity:
The survey on the lending activity of commercial banks during 2003 revealed that banks
continue to prefer medium-size enterprises. However, the second half of the year showed a
growing interest on crediting big enterprises. Banks stated that compared to their forecasts,
lending stood at 92 per cent. The experts judge that a growing business demand for loans
and a greater-than-forecasted level of deposit-collecting lay ground for a growing crediting
activity that can exceed the initial forecasts. On the other hand, there are several obstacles
to lending activity such as the legal restrictions that businesses face, their difficulties in
attaining the needed collateral, as well as the malfunctioning of the mortgage offices.

The lending activity is expected to continue growing in the future, especially the lending to
big businesses, where the trading sector businesses are preferred to the rest of the economy
sectors. The high interest rate of domestic currency and the absence of valid crediting
projects in ALL are the main reasons that will continue to favor lending in foreign currency. In
a medium-term horizon it is believed that the privatization of the Savings Bank will change
this preference.

In any case, expectations speak for an interest rate cut on both, the domestic and the foreign
currency loans. Such a move will be based on central banks’ decision for lower key interest
rates, a growing confidence in the financial institutions, and an increasing competition among
the commercial banks.
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III.3  MONEY DEMAND

III.3.1 BANKING SYSTEM NET FOREIGN ASSETS

During 2003 the banking systems’ foreign assets position has improved significantly,
as the net foreign assets of the system grew by approximately USD 314 million. If

stated in percentage, last year increase of net foreign assets was 26 per cent vis-à-vis an
increase of 3.2 per cent in the previous year.

The Bank of Albania’s USD 211.7 million increase of foreign reserve was the most important
factor in the banking system’s increase of net foreign reserves. It was the appreciation of
the euro vis-à-vis the US dollar that contributed to the increase of the value of that part of
foreign reserve that is invested in euro-denominated instruments. Thus the appreciation of
euro played a very important role in the increase of banking system net foreign assets.
Once the exchange rate effect is excluded, the foreign reserve of the Bank of Albania increase
is USD 123 million. Another important factor that contributed to foreign reserve increase
were the Bank of Albania interventions that in 2003 consisted of purchases of foreign currency
that amounted to USD 87.8 million. The interventions, of which 56 per cent were purchases
from commercial banks, while the rest were purchases from the Ministry of Finance and
others, were concentrated in the three first quarters of the last year.

Commercial banks have demonstrated a slower growth rate of net foreign assets. In 2003
their net foreign assets increased by USD 102.7 million, which is equivalent to a growth rate
of 20.9 per cent. The foreign currency deposits are the main source of commercial banks’
net foreign assets. However, year 2003 has marked an increased efficiency of commercial
banks in channeling their foreign currency funds towards lending to economy.

Chart III.6 Chart III.6 Chart III.6 Chart III.6 Chart III.6 FFFFForeign currency loans and deposits of foreign banks as a percentageoreign currency loans and deposits of foreign banks as a percentageoreign currency loans and deposits of foreign banks as a percentageoreign currency loans and deposits of foreign banks as a percentageoreign currency loans and deposits of foreign banks as a percentage
of banking system depositsof banking system depositsof banking system depositsof banking system depositsof banking system deposits
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III.3.2 NET CREDIT TO GOVERNMENT

The internal financing of the budget deficit stood at 2.7 per cent of GDP, a level that marks
the lowest in the past six years. The banking system was the main internal source of
domestic financing with over 90 per cent. Banks have financed the budget deficit through
purchases of one-year treasury bills and two-year treasury notes.

TTTTTable III.3 able III.3 able III.3 able III.3 able III.3 Budget deficit domestic financing as a percentage of GDPBudget deficit domestic financing as a percentage of GDPBudget deficit domestic financing as a percentage of GDPBudget deficit domestic financing as a percentage of GDPBudget deficit domestic financing as a percentage of GDP

In the course of last year the commercial banks increased their treasury bill portfolios by
17.5 billion ALL, while the Bank of Albania t-bills portfolio decreased by 4 billion ALL. The
public has displayed an increasing interest in investing in t-bills and has increased its
portfolio holdings by 5.4 billion ALL, while institutions’ portfolio holdings decreased by 1.7
billion ALL.

Box III.3 Bank of Albania foreign reserve

There are several reasons why central banks hold and use foreign reserves. Usually, foreign
reserves are held to service foreign trade needs and to maintain the stability of the domestic
currency. In the case of free-floating exchange rate regimes, which is the case of Albania,
guarding the level of foreign reserves is not one of the central bank’s primary objectives.
Thus, foreign reserves are held and administrated in order to help in smoothing out short-
term foreign exchange excess volatility.

TTTTTable 1 Bank of Albania gross foreign reserve (in million USD)able 1 Bank of Albania gross foreign reserve (in million USD)able 1 Bank of Albania gross foreign reserve (in million USD)able 1 Bank of Albania gross foreign reserve (in million USD)able 1 Bank of Albania gross foreign reserve (in million USD)

Overall, the foreign reserve of the Bank of Albania displays a growing trend. Once 1999 is
excluded, the growth rate of 1995-2003 is 13.7 per cent. The foreign reserve reached USD
1.025 billion at the end of 2003. The foreign reserve increase is mainly the outcome of the
increasing returns of its investment, the Bank of Albania interventions in the domestic foreign
exchange market, international institution inflows of foreign currency that are used for financing
Albanian government projects, as well as from the increase of the value of euro investments
when converted into US dollars as a consequence of euro appreciation.

Measuring the foreign reserve in months of imports yields an indicator of the ability to meet
the demand for imports (goods and services) in the event of unexpected financial crisis. This
indicator has been in satisfactory levels.
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Chart III.7 Chart III.7 Chart III.7 Chart III.7 Chart III.7 Gross internal financing of the budget deficit (2003, ALL bill ions)Gross internal financing of the budget deficit (2003, ALL bill ions)Gross internal financing of the budget deficit (2003, ALL bill ions)Gross internal financing of the budget deficit (2003, ALL bill ions)Gross internal financing of the budget deficit (2003, ALL bill ions)

Commercial banks have purchased two-year treasury notes. The Albanian government issued
two-year treasury notes worth 4.2 billion ALL during 2003. Two-year treasury notes were
first introduced in October 2002.

III.3.3 CLAIMS ON PRIVATE SECTOR

Last year saw remarkable improvements with regard to banking financing of economy
through loans. The outstanding credit increased by 11.9 billion ALL, thus standing at 92
percent of the amount forecasted in the monetary program. The aforementioned crediting
of the private sector makes up 37.5 percent of the total increase of broad money. New
credit increased by 48 percent (equivalent to an increase of 92.6 billion ALL) compared to
the previous year. Had the ALL not appreciated last year, new credit would have increased
by 100.1 billion ALL.

A greater crediting of economy in foreign currency makes the growth of outstanding credit
vulnerable to exchange rate movements. The appreciation of ALL against foreign currencies
during 2003 has brought about a decrease of 5.3 billion ALL of outstanding credit. Excluding
the exchange rate effect, the outstanding credit grew 17.2 billion ALL, thus exceeding the
monetary program projections by 33 per cent.

Chart III.8 Chart III.8 Chart III.8 Chart III.8 Chart III.8 Outstanding credit and new credit annual growth rateOutstanding credit and new credit annual growth rateOutstanding credit and new credit annual growth rateOutstanding credit and new credit annual growth rateOutstanding credit and new credit annual growth rate
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The monetary policy of the Bank of Albania has contributed to building a favorable climate
towards businesses’ crediting via keeping the inflation within acceptable limits. The Bank
of Albania easing monetary policy was followed by lower interest rates for loans denominated
in ALL. Furthermore, the improvement of the banks’ liquidity helped in lowering their mediation
costs by lowering the loan-deposit spread.

TTTTTable III.4 able III.4 able III.4 able III.4 able III.4 Main indicators of claims on private sectorMain indicators of claims on private sectorMain indicators of claims on private sectorMain indicators of claims on private sectorMain indicators of claims on private sector

The outstanding credit of the private sector reached 50.6 billion ALL by the end of 2003. Its
portfolio structure revealed a shifting towards medium and long-term loans. The medium
and long-term loans stood at 54 percent of total loans, thus increasing 8.5 percentage
points compared to the previous year. This shows that commercial banks are becoming
more inclined towards financing longer-term projects, which ultimately has positive effects
on the economy.

At the end of 2003 the loan currency portfolio structure shows that 20 percent of the given
loans are denominated in ALL, thus leaving an 80 percent denominated in foreign currency,
as opposed to the previous year, where the respective percentages were 21 and 79.

TTTTTable III.5 able III.5 able III.5 able III.5 able III.5 Outstanding credit indicators (in percentage)Outstanding credit indicators (in percentage)Outstanding credit indicators (in percentage)Outstanding credit indicators (in percentage)Outstanding credit indicators (in percentage)

OUTSTANDING CREDIT STRUCTURE ACCORDING TO ECONOMY SECTORS
Trade sector remains the favorite crediting sector by commercial banks. At the end of 2003
this sector continues to have the greatest weight of the banking system loan portfolio.
Agricultural sector is still the least preferred as far as crediting is concerned. However, last
year saw some improvements towards the crediting of this sector, as well as of the refining
industry sector. There is also an increase in crediting of public purchases of real estate
properties.
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TTTTTable III.6 able III.6 able III.6 able III.6 able III.6 Outstanding credit according to economy sectors (in percentage)Outstanding credit according to economy sectors (in percentage)Outstanding credit according to economy sectors (in percentage)Outstanding credit according to economy sectors (in percentage)Outstanding credit according to economy sectors (in percentage)

NEW LOANS (2003)
During 2003 the monthly average level of commercial banks’ new extended loans was 7.7
billion ALL, while December was the month that registered the highest level with 14.4
billion ALL. The new loan maturity structure reveals that short-term loans make up 68 per
cent of the total, while with regard to currency composition 67 per cent of the new loans are
denominated in foreign currency. Loans denominated in foreign currency dominate the credit
portfolio, as well as the total of new loans due to the differences between the interest rates
of ALL and foreign currency loans. This difference still favors foreign currency denominated
loans. However, it is following a declining trend, thus boosting the appeal of ALL-denominated
loans.

The credit extended last year was heavily oriented towards the trade sector (56 per cent),
manufacturing industry (11 per cent) and for household purchases of real estate (8 per cent)

TTTTTable III.7 able III.7 able III.7 able III.7 able III.7 New credit (in billion ALL)New credit (in billion ALL)New credit (in billion ALL)New credit (in billion ALL)New credit (in billion ALL)
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Box III.4 Concentration of bank lending market (2003)

In the last few years, the competition in the Albanian banking system has been increasing.
The presence and growing number of private banks has been associated with the diminishing
of monopolies in the Albanian banking system.

During 2003 the concentration of lending market has been dissipating as the number of
banks has been increasing. In the past year, the Herfindahl index, which measures the
concentration of several indicators of the bank lending market has been pursuing a falling
trend. The areas that show more of a fall of concentration in the market are lek denominated
loans and long-term loans, as longer-term maturity loans and a greater number of banks
have been involved.

TTTTTable 1 Herfindahl index for some outstanding credit indicatorsable 1 Herfindahl index for some outstanding credit indicatorsable 1 Herfindahl index for some outstanding credit indicatorsable 1 Herfindahl index for some outstanding credit indicatorsable 1 Herfindahl index for some outstanding credit indicators

The new extended credit of the past three years has been accompanied with a high growth
rate. However, even though the number of banks has been increasing and there have been
improvements in the bank lending market, four banks still dominate the market. If compared
to the previous year (2002), these four banks, the most active in this market, show a 2-
percentage point decrease of their activity in the lending market. Additionally, compared to
2002 there has been a decrease of the indicators of concentration of new short-term loans,
as well as of lek denominated loans.

TTTTTable 2 The N index, in percentage (the weight of four most active banks inable 2 The N index, in percentage (the weight of four most active banks inable 2 The N index, in percentage (the weight of four most active banks inable 2 The N index, in percentage (the weight of four most active banks inable 2 The N index, in percentage (the weight of four most active banks in
the bank lending market)the bank lending market)the bank lending market)the bank lending market)the bank lending market)
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Box. III.5 Deposit concentration (2003)

The falling trend of the concentration in the deposit-collecting market continued during
2003. This can be explained by the growing number of banks, as well as by the growing
number of branches of the existing banks.

Chart 1 Herfindahl index of the banking system depositsChart 1 Herfindahl index of the banking system depositsChart 1 Herfindahl index of the banking system depositsChart 1 Herfindahl index of the banking system depositsChart 1 Herfindahl index of the banking system deposits

The indicators of the lek deposits paint a different picture, revealing high concentration, with
the Savings Bank maintaining its dominating position in the deposit-collecting activity in
2003. On the other hand, the foreign currency does not show symptoms of concentration and
is gradually transforming to a quasi-perfect competition market.

Chart 2 Herfindahl index of the ALL and foreign currency depositsChart 2 Herfindahl index of the ALL and foreign currency depositsChart 2 Herfindahl index of the ALL and foreign currency depositsChart 2 Herfindahl index of the ALL and foreign currency depositsChart 2 Herfindahl index of the ALL and foreign currency deposits
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III.4 FOREIGN EXCHANGE MARKET (2003)

Last year saw an appreciation of ALL, which compared to the end of 2002 strengthened
20.85 per cent against the US dollar and 3.60 per cent against the euro.

The main reason behind the ALL appreciation is the substantial difference between ALL
and foreign currency instruments’ interest rate in an environment of low inflation within the
BoA targeted band. The increase of imports positively influenced the demand for foreign
currency, while its supply sufficed to satisfy the demand and bring about the appreciation
of the domestic currency.

From the very beginning of last year, a strengthening trend of ALL was in place in a period
that traditionally has favored the depreciation of domestic currency. At the same time, the
significant depreciation of US dollar in the international market was having a positive effect
on the exchange rate volatility in the domestic market. Being that the US dollar is a
psychologically important currency, the Bank of Albania decided to intervene in the domestic
foreign exchange market. Its interventions were in line with its easing monetary policy. The
Bank of Albania interventions were concentrated mainly in the first half of the year. All of the
BoA interventions in 2003 consisted in purchases of foreign currency, thus decreasing its
supply and increasing the supply of ALL, which ultimately resulted in lower depreciating
pressures on the foreign currencies.

The second half of the year witnessed a lower presence of the Bank of Albania in the
domestic foreign exchange market. This period saw a higher appreciation of ALL against
euro and also a higher volatility of euro/ALL. The European currency tends to be less volatile
than the US dollar, due to growing importance of euro in the domestic currency. The euro is
growing to have a wider use, since it is the main currency of immigrant remittances, which
are the main source of the foreign currency inflow, and also of import payments, as long as
Albanian imports originate mostly from euro area countries.

In the second half of the year the interventions of the Bank of Albania were concentrated
mostly in the periods that the ALL traditionally appreciates, such as the months of August
and December. The purchases of foreign currency in August amounted to USD 3.0 million,
while the less aggressive intervention in December (where the BoA purchased USD 3.3
million) brought the main currencies to new lows for 2003. The closing rates of the euro and
US dollar for 2003 were respectively 133.6 ALL and 106.2 ALL.

TTTTTable II I .8 Intervention of the Bank of Albania in the domestic foreign currencyable II I .8 Intervention of the Bank of Albania in the domestic foreign currencyable II I .8 Intervention of the Bank of Albania in the domestic foreign currencyable II I .8 Intervention of the Bank of Albania in the domestic foreign currencyable II I .8 Intervention of the Bank of Albania in the domestic foreign currency
market (2003, by quarters)market (2003, by quarters)market (2003, by quarters)market (2003, by quarters)market (2003, by quarters)
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Chart III.9 Chart III.9 Chart III.9 Chart III.9 Chart III.9 EUR/ALLEUR/ALLEUR/ALLEUR/ALLEUR/ALL and  and  and  and  and USDUSDUSDUSDUSD/ALL (2003)/ALL (2003)/ALL (2003)/ALL (2003)/ALL (2003)

III.5 MONETARY POLICY INSTRUMENTS

During 2003 the Bank of Albania has followed an easing monetary policy. The decreasing
trend of key interest rate has been in the same direction with the monetary policy of the

majority of the countries of the Balkan region and of the euro area countries.

Most of last year witnessed an application of the monetary policy in a banking environment
of excess liquidity. Consequently, the Bank of Albania operations aimed at withdrawing
liquidity from the market. Indirect instruments were used to fulfill the monetary policy
objective. The main instruments used were one-week, one-month and three-month
repurchase agreements, as well as outright transactions.

These instruments were employed based on the specific conditions in the money market.
Meanwhile, there have been regulation-related improvements of various instruments, such
as on the calculation and remuneration of the required reserve and on the interest rate of
overnight deposit placed with the Bank of Albania.

TTTTTable III.9 Table III.9 Table III.9 Table III.9 Table III.9 Type of oneype of oneype of oneype of oneype of one-week repurchase agreement auction used in 2003-week repurchase agreement auction used in 2003-week repurchase agreement auction used in 2003-week repurchase agreement auction used in 2003-week repurchase agreement auction used in 2003
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III.5.1 REPURCHASE AGREEMENT AUCTIONS

In the first quarter of 2003 the Bank of Albania continued to inject liquidity in the market
through reverse repo auctions.  The deposits had started to return in the system towards
the end of 2002, thus triggering an improvement of liquidity in the system. In order for this
process to continue, the Bank of Albania operated with one-week fixed price reverse
repurchase agreement auction. The same auction type was used until March 2003, injecting
an average of ALL 1.6 billion on a weekly basis.

The Bank of Albania changed the instruments used, once there was a stable improvement
of the banking system liquidity and a curbing of the increasing trend of the t-bills yield. The
interventions until the end of the last year constituted in withdrawing of liquidity through
repo auctions.

Chart III.10 Banking system liquidity during 2003Chart III.10 Banking system liquidity during 2003Chart III.10 Banking system liquidity during 2003Chart III.10 Banking system liquidity during 2003Chart III.10 Banking system liquidity during 2003

The weekly repo auctions consisted mainly of fixed price auctions. They withdrew an average
of ALL 3.2 billion per week, as opposed to an average of ALL 2.3 billion that were injected
through reverse repo auctions the previous year.

In the last weeks of December the Bank of Albania changed the type of the auction employed,
intervening through variable price and fixed amount auctions, thus giving the banks the
possibility to decide the interest rate.

III.5.2  STRUCTURAL INSTRUMENTS

During the liquidity management process in 2003, the Bank of Albania has employed
structural operations, such as one-month, three-month repo auctions and outright sales.

In 2003 there were 11 one-month repo auctions, two of which did not draw the attention of
any of the banks. These interventions were carried out in the period of March-July and later
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on in November with amounts that varied from 1 - 3 billion ALL. In the meantime, banks
offered amounts that varied in much narrower ranges from 0.1 to 2.4 billion ALL.

The three-month repo auctions were limited to one occasion, in May of last year, and
amounted to approximately ALL 1 billion.

The Bank of Albania organized 4 structural (irreversible liquidity withdrawal) auctions that
consisted of outright sales of t-bills in the months of June, July and September of 2003. The
amount that the BoA withdrew adds up to approximately ALL 4 billion.

III.5.3 STANDING FACILITIES

The banks have been more active in employing the overnight deposit instrument due to the
improvement of their liquidity situation. They placed overnight deposits that amount to an
average of ALL1.1 billion as opposed to an average of ALL 0.5 billion in 2002.

In December 2003 the Bank of Albania increased by 0.5 percentage points the difference
between the overnight deposit interest rate and the repo rate. This change aimed at drawing
the banks’ interest towards managing their liquidity in the market.  On the other hand, the
upper limit – the difference between the overnight loan rate and the repo rate- is unchanged.

Chart III 1.1 Interest rate of instruments employed by the Bank of AlbaniaChart III 1.1 Interest rate of instruments employed by the Bank of AlbaniaChart III 1.1 Interest rate of instruments employed by the Bank of AlbaniaChart III 1.1 Interest rate of instruments employed by the Bank of AlbaniaChart III 1.1 Interest rate of instruments employed by the Bank of Albania

The overnight loan was rarely used during 2003, while in the previous year it was widely
employed as a standing facility in order to deal with the liquidity shortage. In 2003 its
average use amounted to ALL 0.03 billion as opposed to an average of ALL 2.1 billion in
2002. The Lombard loan was never employed in 2003.
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III.5.4 IMPROVEMENTS OF THE BANK OF ALBANIA OPERATIONAL
FRAMEWORK IN 2003

Last year marked significant improvements of the required reserve instrument. The
improvements of its regulation in March 2003 have drawn this instrument’s structure and
functioning closer to that of the European Central Bank. These changes consisted in:

• Determining the required reserve base based on the data of the commercial banks’
monthly balance sheet;

• Applying the monthly averaging system and placing the mobilization of the required
reserve on a monthly basis;

• Changing the period of the reserve holding, thus bringing it closer to the standards
of the European Central Bank;

• Calculating the remuneration of the required reserve in lek based on the key interest
rate;

• Bringing closer the measures to be taken in the event of non-compliance with those
employed by the European Central Bank;

• Increasing the remuneration of the required reserve from 50 per cent to 70 per cent
of the key interest rate for the lek required reserve and euribor and libor for the
foreign currency one;

• Increasing the limit of its employment from 5 per cent to 20 per cent.

These percentages and the rate of the required reserve will continue to draw the attention of
the Bank of Albania, which will assess the need to change them. They remain the main
challenge that Bank of Albania faces in its process of bringing the required reserve instrument
closer to the model provided by the European Central Bank.

Additionally, the Bank of Albania has made improvements on the regulation of the collateral
that it uses in its operations. These improvements largely consist in the method used for
assessing the collateral and aim at increasing the efficiency of the Bank of Albania operational
framework. The measures taken aim at reducing the market and credit risk that is involved
in the crediting operations and also sanction the administrative measures to be taken in the
event the collateral requirements are not fully met.

III.6 FINANCIAL MARKETS

Owing to the systems’ liquidity excess, borrowing in the inter-bank market even though
frequent, has been employed to meet short-term (mostly daily) needs. Daily transaction

have averaged a total of ALL 0.5 billion compared to an approximate average of ALL 1
billion in 2002.

In the primary market, the government demand for monetary assets has been met mainly
by commercial banks and households. The participants’ supply in the primary market has
been often higher than the amount issued by the Ministry of Finance, especially in the
second half of 2003. This has positively influenced the constant decline of the t-bills yield.
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Banks demanded mostly 12-month t-bills. In 2003 the weight of the 12-month t-bills issued
by the government increased to 31 per cent of the total from 22 per cent in 2002.

Chart III.12  Amount of TChart III.12  Amount of TChart III.12  Amount of TChart III.12  Amount of TChart III.12  Amount of Treasury bills issued by the government.reasury bills issued by the government.reasury bills issued by the government.reasury bills issued by the government.reasury bills issued by the government.

The government also issued two-year Treasury notes on a monthly basis with amounts
varying from 300 to 500 million ALL. The interest rate for this notes has declined gradually
along 2003 and by the end of December it reached 10.2 per cent compared to 14.1 per cent
in December 2002.

In the domestic foreign exchange market the lek has appreciated substantially against the
US dollar, especially during the second half of the year. The appreciation trend has been
positively influenced by the weakening of the US dollar in the international market. Bank of
Albania intervened in the domestic foreign exchange market, aiming at stabilizing the
exchange rate of lek to other currencies. In the first quarter of 2003 the interventions aimed
at reducing the supply of the US dollar, while in the period of May-August and in December
they sought to reduce the supply of euro. In these events the fluctuations of domestic
currency vis-à-vis foreign currencies (euro and US dollar) have been the outcome of immigrant
remittances during vacations.

Chart III.13  ALL exchange rate against Chart III.13  ALL exchange rate against Chart III.13  ALL exchange rate against Chart III.13  ALL exchange rate against Chart III.13  ALL exchange rate against EUREUREUREUREUR and  and  and  and  and USDUSDUSDUSDUSD
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III.7  INTEREST RATES

Interest rates have displayed a falling trend across all markets, thus reflecting the easing
monetary policy of the Bank of Albania. By the end of 2003 the interest rate of overnight

transactions in the inter-bank market reached 3.92 per cent, almost half of the level it stood
at the same period last year. The interest rate in the inter-bank market was influenced not
only by the key interest rate cut, but also the cut of the interest rate of the overnight deposit
in the beginning of December.

Chart III.14  Inter-bank interest ratesChart III.14  Inter-bank interest ratesChart III.14  Inter-bank interest ratesChart III.14  Inter-bank interest ratesChart III.14  Inter-bank interest rates

The treasury bill yield almost reached the same level it stood at prior to the liquidity crisis.
The three-month t-bills yield has decreased by 3.85 percentage points, thus revealing the
highest decline of all maturities. The yield for t-bills of this maturity fell significantly after the
very first easing signal that the central bank sent to the markets, while the yield of the other
maturities displayed more uniform changes. The growing demand of commercial banks for
treasury bills has been another factor behind the decreasing yield of the t-bills.

TTTTTable III.10  Changes in Table III.10  Changes in Table III.10  Changes in Table III.10  Changes in Table III.10  Changes in T-bills yield-bills yield-bills yield-bills yield-bills yield

1 The Bank of Albania signal is given at the end of April 2003.
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Chart III.16  Primary market interest rates according to maturitiesChart III.16  Primary market interest rates according to maturitiesChart III.16  Primary market interest rates according to maturitiesChart III.16  Primary market interest rates according to maturitiesChart III.16  Primary market interest rates according to maturities

The interest rate of the deposits and loans have been falling all along 2003, while this
decrease has been reflected in the decrease of the banking system mediation cost2 from
7.9 percent in the end of 2002 to 5.05 percentage points at the end of 2003. This is the
lowest historical value of this indicator.

TTTTTable III.11 Changes of the interest rate of deposits and loansable III.11 Changes of the interest rate of deposits and loansable III.11 Changes of the interest rate of deposits and loansable III.11 Changes of the interest rate of deposits and loansable III.11 Changes of the interest rate of deposits and loans

The falling trend of the nominal interest rate has positively affected the decrease of the real
interest rate. However, the real interest rate is still in positive levels.

Chart III.16 Real and nominal interest rates of one-year Chart III.16 Real and nominal interest rates of one-year Chart III.16 Real and nominal interest rates of one-year Chart III.16 Real and nominal interest rates of one-year Chart III.16 Real and nominal interest rates of one-year ALLALLALLALLALL deposits deposits deposits deposits deposits

 
 

        
      
      

      
 

      
      

      
      

2 The difference between the loan and deposit interest rate.
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Despite the fluctuation of real interest rates, in the second half of 2003 this indicator was
stable at an average rate of 4 per cent.

The foreign currency deposit interest rates have revealed a falling trend due to the interest
rate cuts of international central banks.

Chart III.17 Interest rates of new foreign currency deposits inflowChart III.17 Interest rates of new foreign currency deposits inflowChart III.17 Interest rates of new foreign currency deposits inflowChart III.17 Interest rates of new foreign currency deposits inflowChart III.17 Interest rates of new foreign currency deposits inflow

The mid-year interest rate cuts of the European Central Bank and the Federal Reserve triggered
a substantial fall of foreign currency deposit interest rates. The rest of the year saw fairly
stable interest rates.

The foreign currency loan market has been rather stable, with average credit interest rates
of 7 per cent in the second half of the year.

Chart III. 18  FChart III. 18  FChart III. 18  FChart III. 18  FChart III. 18  Foreign currency credit interest ratesoreign currency credit interest ratesoreign currency credit interest ratesoreign currency credit interest ratesoreign currency credit interest rates

This market displays a wider range of interest rates than the deposits one, mainly due to
monthly changes of credit extending structure.

TTTTTable III.8. able III.8. able III.8. able III.8. able III.8. WWWWWeighted average credit interest rateeighted average credit interest rateeighted average credit interest rateeighted average credit interest rateeighted average credit interest rate
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CHAPTER IV BANKING SUPERCHAPTER IV BANKING SUPERCHAPTER IV BANKING SUPERCHAPTER IV BANKING SUPERCHAPTER IV BANKING SUPERVISIONVISIONVISIONVISIONVISION

IV.1 BANKING SYSTEM PERFORMANCE

IV.1.1 BANKING SYSTEM PERFORMANCE

During 2003 the banking system experienced important developments such as the
entrance of a new nationally-owned bank, preliminary licensing of another bank of the

same kind as well as successful conclusion of the Savings Bank privatization process.
Eventually, after being faced with some unsuccessful privatization attempts, last December
Savings Bank was sold at one hundred percent share to the strategic investor, Raifeissen
Bank. These changes raised up to fifteen the number of the Albanian banks.  The detailed
data on these banks are presented in the following table:

TTTTTable IVable IVable IVable IVable IV.1 .1 .1 .1 .1 Banking system indicatorsBanking system indicatorsBanking system indicatorsBanking system indicatorsBanking system indicators

Based on the respective figures, the banking system financial state is deemed to be
satisfactory. The net income of the banking system was nearly ALL 4.45 billion or 0.6 per
cent of GDP.  In comparative terms, the net income of 2003 was ALL 0.6 billion (or 14.4 per
cent) higher than respective figure in 2002.
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TTTTTable IVable IVable IVable IVable IV.2 .2 .2 .2 .2 RRRRRevenues, expenses and the net income (evenues, expenses and the net income (evenues, expenses and the net income (evenues, expenses and the net income (evenues, expenses and the net income (ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)

The net revenues1 from the main activity of the banking system rose to ALL 13.3 billion.
These net revenues increased by ALL 2.1 billion or 18.8 per cent compared to the respective
figure at the end of 2002. Net revenues from interest, which are the main revenue contributors,
made up 84 per cent of total net revenues while the rest came from commissions and
foreign exchange activity.

The good financial state of the banking system was also reflected by the profitability ratios,
which have improved considerably, compared to the previous years.

TTTTTable IVable IVable IVable IVable IV.3 .3 .3 .3 .3 PPPPProfitability ratios (in percentage)rofitability ratios (in percentage)rofitability ratios (in percentage)rofitability ratios (in percentage)rofitability ratios (in percentage)

Total assets of the banking system increased by ALL 34.3 billion or 10.1 per cent compared
to end of the year 2002. This growth is attributed not only to the treasury and inter-bank
transactions but also to the crediting activity as well as investments in Treasury Bills.
Nonetheless, there is evidence of a slight decrease in the ratio of total assets against the
GDP that has been attributed to the restricted activity of Savings Bank on the eve of its
privatization.

TTTTTable IVable IVable IVable IVable IV.4 T.4 T.4 T.4 T.4 Total assets (otal assets (otal assets (otal assets (otal assets (ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)

The figures of the Herfindahl index of the banking system asset concentration revealed a
downsizing trend evidencing a well-diversified asset structure.

TTTTTable IVable IVable IVable IVable IV.5 .5 .5 .5 .5 Herfindahl index of banking system asset concentrationHerfindahl index of banking system asset concentrationHerfindahl index of banking system asset concentrationHerfindahl index of banking system asset concentrationHerfindahl index of banking system asset concentration

       
      
      

      

       
      
      

       
      

      

     
     

1 Detailed information on the performance and financial state of the banking system is provided on the Annual Report
of the Supervision Department, published separately by the Bank of Albania.
2 Return on Assets
3 Return on Owner’s Equity
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Bank crediting activity increased by 30.5 per cent during 2003, compared to 2002. The
crediting activity counts for 13.5 per cent of the total assets of the banking system.
Nevertheless, the calculations demonstrate that credit activity tot up for 27.9 per cent of the
total assets of banking system excluding Savings Bank. This can be considered a good
base line for further development of the crediting activity during 2004, which will be further
enhanced by the capacity and the ability of the Savings Bank to extend credits after its
successful privatization.

The ratio of non-performing loans to credit stock is subject to continual shrinking indicating
improved lending quality. The correspondent figure of this indicator in 2003 was 4.6 per
cent compared to 5.6 per cent in 2002.

TTTTTable IVable IVable IVable IVable IV.6 .6 .6 .6 .6 Credit portfolio indicators expressed as a percentage of classified creditsCredit portfolio indicators expressed as a percentage of classified creditsCredit portfolio indicators expressed as a percentage of classified creditsCredit portfolio indicators expressed as a percentage of classified creditsCredit portfolio indicators expressed as a percentage of classified credits

Capital adequacy ratio stood at a satisfactory level of 28.5 per cent by the end of 2003, even
though it decreased compared to 20026 figure. The main reason behind this decrease was
the upsurge by 12.3 per cent (or ALL 7 billions) of the risk weighted assets component as
opposed to the moderate increase of regulatory capital by 1.3 per cent or ALL 222 millions.

TTTTTable IVable IVable IVable IVable IV.7 Capital adequacy ratio (.7 Capital adequacy ratio (.7 Capital adequacy ratio (.7 Capital adequacy ratio (.7 Capital adequacy ratio (ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)bill ions)

The ratio of quick assets to total assets remained at satisfactory level during 2003 (exceeding
32 per cent), corresponding to the excess liquidity situation that characterized the banking
sector during 2003 as revealed from the data on inter-banking activity and the utilization of
Bank of Albania standing facilities. These satisfactory levels of liquidity indicators signaled
a reduction of the liquidity risk exposure of the banking system.

4 The respective figures for 1999 and 2000 include the non-perorming loans of Savings Bank transfered  to the Bank
Asset Resolution Trust (BART) by the end of 2001.
5 Standard and special mention credits are classified as regular credits. The remaining groups are treated as non-
performing loans.
6 The respective figure by the end of 2002 was 31.6 per cent.

     
     

     
     

     
      

     
     

    
    

    
    



76

IV.2  LICENSING AND BANKING REGULATION

The approval of the document “Principles of Bank Licensing” was a successful
accomplishment of the efforts to create a comprehensive regulatory framework for banks

and other financial intermediaries, a framework that will steer them towards prudent business
without stifling healthy competition. This document clearly sets out the main principles of
bank licensing and Supervisory Council decision-making process, which could be shortly
summarized as: equal rights in applying for a bank license, equal consideration of
applications, safeguard public confidence and fair competition and transparency of the
licensing and decision-making process.

The continuous amendments of the banking supervision regulative system aimed at its
harmonization with the European Union regulative system and international standards of
effective supervision as well as its adaptation to banking system developments, legislation
and to the overall economic development in Albania.

IV.2.1 LICENSING

The 2003 developments in the licensing activity of Bank of Albania can be summarized as:

• The Supervisory Council of the Bank of Albania decided to accord the license to
Credins Bank for the conduct of banking activities in the Republic of Albania. In
addition, the Council granted the preliminary license to Popular Bank.

• The Bank of Albania gave the permission to the American Bank of Albania to open
a new branch abroad. This stands as a preliminary permission to operate until this
bank receives the final license for a new branch opening in Athens, Greece.
Additionally, the Bank of Albania granted the license to Popular Bank of Puglia to
open a representing office in Albania. This is the first time a foreign bank opens a
representative offices here.

• Two new non-banking agencies were licensed this year, “Albacredit Ltd” and “AK-
Invest SA”. These subjects were licensed to conduct cash collecting and cash
payment services and other financial intermediation functions in domestic and foreign
currencies.

• The number of the building societies increased by 20 new institutions, all of which
members of two long-established credit unions. At the same time, the Bank of Albania
revoked the license to two building societies, for reasons provided for in the law.

• The Bank of Albania approved the structural change of the Tirana Bank shareholders.
Three more practices are being followed to change the shareholder structure of
Dardania Bank, National Commercial Bank and Savings Bank.

• Additionally, the Bank of Albania approved the revision in names of the following
banks: Arabian-Albanian Islamic Bank to United Bank of Albania, FEFAD Bank to
ProCredit Bank as well as Commercial Bank of Greece to EMPORIKI Bank. While
the first two are already legally approved, the last one is still in process.
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The table below gives a view of all subjects licensed by Bank of Albania in the respective
years:

TTTTTable IVable IVable IVable IVable IV.8 .8 .8 .8 .8 List of Subjects Licensed by Bank of AlbaniaList of Subjects Licensed by Bank of AlbaniaList of Subjects Licensed by Bank of AlbaniaList of Subjects Licensed by Bank of AlbaniaList of Subjects Licensed by Bank of Albania

IV.2.2 REGULATIONS

The regulative framework of bank supervision knew further changes during 2003. A brief
summary of the amendments are presented below:

• The regulation on “““““Authorized chartered auditors of banksAuthorized chartered auditors of banksAuthorized chartered auditors of banksAuthorized chartered auditors of banksAuthorized chartered auditors of banks” has been amended
following the recommendations provided by Development Plan of Supervision. This
new version gives a more important role to the control committee in evaluating the
authorized accounting experts.

• The modification of the guideline on “Liquidity of a bankLiquidity of a bankLiquidity of a bankLiquidity of a bankLiquidity of a bank” aims at giving more
flexibility to banks in applying additional ratios for bank liquidity management.

• The perceived tendency of microfinance institutions to consolidate or to form alliances
made necessary the revision of the regulation on “Licensing the Building SocietiesLicensing the Building SocietiesLicensing the Building SocietiesLicensing the Building SocietiesLicensing the Building Societies”.
The changes that were made intended to adapt this regulation to this new tendency.

• The Bank of Albania issued a new regulation on “Granting the license to non-Granting the license to non-Granting the license to non-Granting the license to non-Granting the license to non-
banking financial subjectsbanking financial subjectsbanking financial subjectsbanking financial subjectsbanking financial subjects”, which is expected to improve the way in which
the required documentation is completed and to elucidate the paid-capital
requirements necessary when the subject demands the expansion of its allowed
activity. This regulation complements to the regulation on “Licensing FLicensing FLicensing FLicensing FLicensing Financialinancialinancialinancialinancial
Institutions to Conduct Banking Activities in Republic of AlbaniaInstitutions to Conduct Banking Activities in Republic of AlbaniaInstitutions to Conduct Banking Activities in Republic of AlbaniaInstitutions to Conduct Banking Activities in Republic of AlbaniaInstitutions to Conduct Banking Activities in Republic of Albania”.

• The new amended regulation on “FFFFForeign Exchange Activityoreign Exchange Activityoreign Exchange Activityoreign Exchange Activityoreign Exchange Activity” is well harmonized
to the European Union recommendations and to the obligations that follow
international agreements on capital account liberalization. This regulation is also
expected to solve some problems that arose from practical application of its old
version. The most significant change was lifting the restriction on the approval of
banks’ current and capital accounts activities by the Bank of Albania, delegating
banks the right to self-verify the documentation, as well as the simplification (minding
the content) of the documentation required to conduct these activities.

• The new issued regulation on “Bank RBank RBank RBank RBank Related Pelated Pelated Pelated Pelated Personsersonsersonsersonsersons” defines persons who are
considered related to one bank, and it sets the guidelines necessary to supervise
the conducted activity of the bank with its related persons.
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• The new regulation on “Administrators of banks and branches of foreignAdministrators of banks and branches of foreignAdministrators of banks and branches of foreignAdministrators of banks and branches of foreignAdministrators of banks and branches of foreign
banksbanksbanksbanksbanks” specifies the concept of a bank administrator, the requirements they must
meet as well as defines a set of guidelines fundamental for coordinating the
relationships between the main managerial levels.

IV.3 ON-SITE EXAMINATIONS

The on-site examination was guided by the approved annual examination plan aiming at
exercising comprehensive examinations in all banks throughout the year, associated

with partial examination in problematic areas. During 2003 twenty-two inspections were
carried out in the banks; fifteen of which were comprehensive and the rest were partial.

Generally speaking, these on-site examinations demonstrated a healthy financial state of
the banking system. The main conclusions drawn from the inspection process are reviewed
in the subsequent paragraphs:

• The remarked growth of the assets in a number of banks evidenced the aggressive
policy followed by these banks and responsiveness of the clients towards these
policies.

• The structural changes of the assets in some banks, explicitly the upsurge of the
“credit to clients” category, revealed a change in the banks attitude towards
conducting a more keen banking activity, and therefore unequivocally influencing
the economic growth of the country. As it may be expected, the expansion of the
crediting activity has been occasionally accompanied with increase in the absolute
value of bad loans.

• The banking system has been characterized by ample liquidity, mainly due to
investment in liquid assets as: interbank loans, Treasury Bills issued by the Albanian
Government or other securities issued by the governments of countries in the A
area.

• Overall, the net profit figure has improved compared to last year respective figure.
This increase has been attributed to the expansion of banking activity, the coverage
of the first-establishing expenses and enhancement of the balance sheet assets
brought about by investments in profiting activities. The positive trend in the net
profit is considered stable for most of the banks.

• Banks continue to penetrate the market by opening new branches and agencies
throughout the country. Product diversification is one of the most followed strategies
by some of the banks that have started to offer credit cards, insert Automatic Teller
Machines, etc.

• The commercial bank managers have been showing a satisfactory commitment to
resolve the problems evidenced during the on-site examinations. Nevertheless,
delays have been noticed in:
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- Proper and in-time implementation of the Bank of Albania’s recommendations;
- Improvement of policies and procedures concerning banking activity;
- Completion  of the banking activity regulative framework;
- Implementation of the bank business plan.

• In addition, the on-site examination did find track of legal misconduct. Explicitly,
the Law on “Accounting”, “Banks in the Republic of Albania” and the “Prevention of
Money Laundering” (as well as the respective guidelines of Bank of Albania and
Ministry of Finance) have been violated.

• There has been evidence of failure to accurately implement Bank of Albania’s
regulative framework. Occasionally it was noticed:

- Failure to classify credits in accordance with the respective regulation of the Bank
of Albania on “ Credit Risk Management”;

- Appointment of managers without the preliminary approval of the central bank;
- Lack in the documentation of the foreign exchange transfers;
- Deficiency of the internal control system, etc

The commercial banks paid the necessary attention to the recommendations of the on-site
inspection reports as far as the enhancement of the banking process and the improvement
of internal banking regulations in all areas is concerned particularly in security investments,
crediting activity, risk management, etc.
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CHAPTER VCHAPTER VCHAPTER VCHAPTER VCHAPTER V. OTHER A. OTHER A. OTHER A. OTHER A. OTHER ACTIVITIESCTIVITIESCTIVITIESCTIVITIESCTIVITIES

V.1  THE PAYMENT SYSTEM

The stimulation and the support of payment system are considered as legal obligations
of the Bank of Albania. As the very institution that performs account settlements, the

Bank of Albania is fully committed to expanding the operational area as well as promoting
technological innovations in the payment system.

V.1.1 DEVELOPMENT OF THE PAYMENT SYSTEM

The new Accounting and Treasury Management (ATM) system – implemented in the last
quarter of 2002 to automate operations conducted by the Bank of Albania – eased the
finalization of the last project phase, the implementation of Albanian InterAlbanian InterAlbanian InterAlbanian InterAlbanian Inter-bank P-bank P-bank P-bank P-bank Paymentaymentaymentaymentayment
System (AIPS). System (AIPS). System (AIPS). System (AIPS). System (AIPS). This project, which is expected to upgrade the financial infrastructure of
the country, was backed up by the counseling and assistance of the World Bank. It took
seven months to be fully implemented requiring intensive involvement not only of the Bank
of Albania staff, but full participation of commercial banks, which are the eventual
beneficiaries of this project.

The new AIPS system holds the entire standard functions to process Real Time Gross
Settlements (RTGS).  This system irreversibly processes all inter-bank transfers in domestic
currency checking in real time whether the banks have sufficient coverage for them or not.
It offers to participants the possibility to manage the preferred queue of their transfers and
their own liquidity.

The Bank of Albania is the owner, the main operator and at the same time one of the
participants of this system. The system numbers twelve participant banks from a total
number of fifteen licensed banks. All the licensed banks have the right to partake in AIPS
system once they receive the membership certificate from the Bank of Albania. The
participating and service fees and charges are set to cover operational expenses, as a
contribution fund to the general reform of the national payment system, although investment
costs are fully covered by the Bank of Albania.

The AIPS system is fully compatible with other payment systems such as the cheque and
payment-order clearing system, a system implemented the by Bank of Albania to clear and
settle cheques and small payment transfers. This is the system that processes interbank
transfers ordered by banks’ clients. The clearing process is carried out on a daily session
organized by the Bank of Albania. The net result of this clearing procedure is then processed
with high priority in the AIPS system.

One of the future projects designed by the Bank of Albania is the complete automation of
the cheque clearing process to be introduced by a new system, the Automated ClearingAutomated ClearingAutomated ClearingAutomated ClearingAutomated Clearing
House (ACH).House (ACH).House (ACH).House (ACH).House (ACH).     This new system, which will process cheques and the small transfers
clearing and settlement, is going to be fully integrated into the AIPS system.
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V.1.2 INSTRUMENTS OF PAYMENT

2003 was another year that evidenced the payment order as the most used payment
instrument. It counted for 77 per cent of the total payment volume and 53 per cent of the
total payments ordered by clients.

Using cheques as a means of payment remains limited stressing thus the fact that cheque
is still considered an uncomfortable means of payment in Albania. Hence, the most preferred
type continues to be the bank cheque.

Year 2003 evidenced a general tendency to improve the payment infrastructure by increasing
investments in the field. The highest funds were concentrated in introducing electronic
means of payment. The number of Automatic Teller Machines installed during 2003 amounted
to twelve, partly in Tirana and the rest in other Albanian cities.

The number of debit and credit cards in domestic currency issued in 2003 summed to
4,300. Nevertheless, the practice of electronic payment means count for only three per cent
of the total payment volume ordered by clients.

V.2 EU INTEGRATION AND RELATIONS WITH INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

V.2.1 EU INTEGRATION

Year 2003 is regarded as a remarkable year in the European integration process since
January 2003 marked the start of the official negotiations to sign the Stabilization and

Association Agreement between the European Union and Albania. The Bank of Albania has
played an active role in this process as a member of the Albanian Government negotiation
team. The main task assigned to the central bank was the coordination of respective roles
played by the country institutions in the negotiation process.

In this respect, the Bank of Albania has been active in discussing some of the articles of
this agreement, which deal with:

• establishment of banking institutions and the activities allowed to be conducted by
these institutions,

• capital account liberalization as the main provision for economic integration in the
common European market,

• prevention of money laundering.

Furthermore, the Bank of Albania offered its contribution to the process by providing
information to the European Commission concerning: the economic developments of the
country, the design and implementation of monetary policy tailored to achieve the main
objective – price stability, the stance of monetary policy and the conducted operations,
banking system and banking supervision, etc.
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The Bank of Albania has clearly presented its strategic approach to the European Union
representatives towards reaching the convergence with European Central Bank. This
important objective found reflection in one of the articles of the bilateral agreement between
the Republic of Germany and the Republic of Albania, according to which German experts
will assist the Bank of Albania in the convergence process.

V.2.2 RELATIONS WITH INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

THE INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND
Article IV of the Articles of Agreement of the IMF was adequately implemented during
2003. Three IMF examining missions visited Albania during April, July and October to evaluate
the progress done in accordance to this article. The missions’ discussions were focused on
tracing monetary developments; the progress in the real sector of the economy and forecasts
on its future performance; the pace of the inflation rate and economic growth along with the
explicit factors that affect them, the financial situation of the banking system analyzed with
respect to the liquidity situation, risk management, quality of the credit portfolio, crediting activity, etc.

After a detailed examination of the consulting reports and objectives enclosed by the Albanian
Government in the Memorandum of Economic and Financial Policies, the IMF Executive
Board considered that Albania’s performance during the first year of the three-year PRGF-
supported program on balance has been satisfactory, with low inflation, a stable effective
exchange rate, and gradual consolidation1. This evaluation confirmed the first along with
the second review, and brought the extension of two new loan-instalments amounting to
SDR 4 million each, respectively in March and July.  These instalments are part of the three-
year “Poverty Reduction and Growth Facility” arrangement, which was signed last year.

The Technical Assistance Program is another important aspect of the bilateral relations
between the Bank of Albania and the IMF. Two technical assistance missions at expert level
visited Bank of Albania during July and November 2003. The technical assistance provided by
the International Monetary Fund has been quite effective and helpful in resolving different issues
of central banking, problems in designing monetary policy and in modeling and forecasting
inflation regime.

WORLD BANK GROUP
Year 2003 saw favorable developments in the cooperation between the Bank of Albania
and the World Bank Group. The assistance of the World Bank was considered very constructive
in the implementation of the new payment system, the Albanian Interbank Payment System.
Additionally, this institution continued to advice the Bank of Albania concerning the Supervision
Development Plan.

Bank of Albania welcomes and appreciates the growing trend in the commitment of the
World Bank to giving financial support to the projects implemented by the central bank.
After the successful implementation of the AIPS project, the World Bank has expressed its
keenness to contribute financially to other projects such as the Automated Clearing House
(ACH) project, the Credit Information Bureau project, etc.

1 Press Release No.03/102, IMF External Relations Department.
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THE EUROPEAN BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT
The Bank of Albania as a supervisor of the banking system and as an independent observer
of the economic developments in Albania has been a decent partner of the European Bank
for Reconstruction and Development. This collaboration was not limited only in the exchange
of information aspect but it was also extended in conducting official meetings with high-
level representatives of the EBRD. These meetings provided the necessary acquaintance
with the evaluation criteria as well as deepened the bilateral relationship. The successful
privatization of the Savings Bank is expected to upgrade the international evaluation for our
banking system.

CENTRAL BANKS AND OTHER INSTITUTIONS
The relations of Bank of Albania with other central banks have kept the same pace as last
year, particularly in information and experience exchange areas as well as the organization
of training activities mostly with the European Central Bank, and central banks of Germany,
France and Czech Republic. The relevant relations have been focused mainly in technical
assistance, short-term training courses and support provided through document exchanges.
Remarkable growth has been noticed in the cooperation in the aforementioned areas with
the Czech National Bank and Bank of Italy.

During 2003 the Bank of Albania made significant progress in its relations with the Banking
and Payment Authority of Kosovo (BPA). Apart from the official visits and meetings, experts
from Bank of Albania paid a few days visit to the BPA to offer, for the first time, their own
experience in Archive and Protocol matters. The conclusion of the meeting organized with
the Executive Director of the BPA was the expansion of the cooperation between the two
institutions to share the best experiences. Furthermore, an assisting program is going to be
prepared and completed during the next upcoming year.

V.3 BANKNOTES AND COINS

V.3.1 CURRENCY IN CIRCULATION

Currency issuing and management were characterized by positive developments during
2003. These positive developments were reflected by the downsizing trend of currency

in circulation. The particular figure by the end of the year was ALL 127.7 billion, otherwise
ALL 5.34 billion less than the respective figure in 2002.

Chart VChart VChart VChart VChart V.1 .1 .1 .1 .1 Currency in Circulation (Currency in Circulation (Currency in Circulation (Currency in Circulation (Currency in Circulation (ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL millions)millions)millions)millions)millions)
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Cash placements during the first half of the year were higher then cash withdrawals;
nevertheless they exhibited a diminishing growth rate. The highest level of the cash
placements was noted in January followed up by gradual reduction until June. The quantity
of the cash placements remained high even in the second half of the year but it was
accompanied with growth in cash withdrawals attributed to the increase in the government
public spending moderately in July and August and particularly high in December.

Chart VChart VChart VChart VChart V.2 Cash Placements and Withdrawals of Banking System during 2003 (in.2 Cash Placements and Withdrawals of Banking System during 2003 (in.2 Cash Placements and Withdrawals of Banking System during 2003 (in.2 Cash Placements and Withdrawals of Banking System during 2003 (in.2 Cash Placements and Withdrawals of Banking System during 2003 (in
b i l l ions)b i l l ions)b i l l ions)b i l l ions)b i l l ions)

The structure of banknotes and coins in circulation has been generally kept within the
forecasted structural boundaries. The central bank provided funds to commercial banks in
complete accordance to both the structure of currency in circulation and banks’ own demand.
An issue of particular importance was the increased circulation of 100 ALL coin during December,
which brought the structure of currency circulation very close to the projected one.

Chart VChart VChart VChart VChart V.3 Coins in Circulation (in millions of pieces).3 Coins in Circulation (in millions of pieces).3 Coins in Circulation (in millions of pieces).3 Coins in Circulation (in millions of pieces).3 Coins in Circulation (in millions of pieces)
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Chart VChart VChart VChart VChart V. 4  Banknotes in Circulation (in millions of pieces). 4  Banknotes in Circulation (in millions of pieces). 4  Banknotes in Circulation (in millions of pieces). 4  Banknotes in Circulation (in millions of pieces). 4  Banknotes in Circulation (in millions of pieces)

Bank of Albania processed the currency guided by the principle of protecting the authenticity
of the Albanian issued currency. The banknotes were selected according to their physical
quality. The banknotes unfit for further circulation were destroyed. Additional attention was
paid to hold an adequate level of the monetary reserve in order to satisfy in time the demand
of the economy for domestic currency.

Particular interest has been assigned to the prevention of the production and distribution of
counterfeit banknotes. Nevertheless, historically the counterfeits have had an inconsiderable
number in the totality of banknotes in circulation.

V.3.2 NUMISMATICS

The numismatic activity was further
developed during 2003.  During this year,
there were created some new metallic coins
mainly for numismatic purposes but even
for issuing purposes. One of these
metallic coins created for numismatic
purposes, was ‘50 lekë’ coin. This coin,
which marked the 90th Anniversary of
the Independence Proclamation,
remained without legal tender.
Two other coins were also minted during

100 Lekë coin, without legal tender100 Lekë coin, without legal tender100 Lekë coin, without legal tender100 Lekë coin, without legal tender100 Lekë coin, without legal tender
“90th Anniversary of the Independence“90th Anniversary of the Independence“90th Anniversary of the Independence“90th Anniversary of the Independence“90th Anniversary of the Independence

PPPPProclamationroclamationroclamationroclamationroclamation”””””

100 Lekë coin, without legal tender100 Lekë coin, without legal tender100 Lekë coin, without legal tender100 Lekë coin, without legal tender100 Lekë coin, without legal tender
“““““Albanian AntiquityAlbanian AntiquityAlbanian AntiquityAlbanian AntiquityAlbanian Antiquity ”””””

50 Lekë coin, without legal tender50 Lekë coin, without legal tender50 Lekë coin, without legal tender50 Lekë coin, without legal tender50 Lekë coin, without legal tender
“90th Anniversary of the“90th Anniversary of the“90th Anniversary of the“90th Anniversary of the“90th Anniversary of the
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2003, marking the “Albanian Antiquity”. The ‘20 lekë’
coin remained without legal tender, while the ‘50
lekë’ coin received a legal tender.  Aiming at
achieving a complete  convergence with the
respective international practices, for the first time
in 2003,  the Bank of Albania intended to give a
legal tender to the coins created for numismatic
purposes. This process is going to be fully
accomplished during 2004.

Another commemorative coin created for
numismatic purposes (without legal tender) was
the ‘50 lekë’ coin, which marked the “100th
Anniversary  of Jeronim De Rada’s Death, 1903-
2003”, famous Albanian writer and patriot.

During 2003 there was a boosting interest of foreign
numismatists in buying and collecting the Albanian
banknotes in circulation.

The Bank of Albania published for the first time a catalogue entitled “The Albanian Banknotes
and Coins”, which can be regarded as the encyclopedia of Albanian banknotes and coins.

V.4 INTERNAL AUDITING

The Bank of Albania internal auditing was exercised respecting the legal provisions of
Article 54 of the Law “On the Bank of Albania”. The internal auditing assessed the

performance of all departments in the Bank of Albania based on methods widely applied in
other central banks. The harmonization of auditing methods was further intensified by the
experience received as a member of the Institution of Internal Auditing, USA. The membership
in this institution was one of the events of 2003.

A total number of 43 audits, or otherwise 3.6 audits on monthly average, were exercised
during 2003. Out of them, 40 audits were planned in the annual program and only 3 of them
were realized upon the recommendation of the bank administrators covering specific subject
matters. Additionally, the audits exercised on the information technology issues were further
intensified this year. Particularly following the suggestions of the international organizations,
the Audit Department performed internal audits in the statistical sector intended to provide
references on the data quality in the balance of payments.

All recommendations driven by the exercised audits targeted the amplification of the internal
auditing function of the central bank, bringing about the intensification of preventative
measures implemented by the internal auditing department. The audits throughout 2003
evidenced three cases of incurred economic damage that were compensated by the persons
held accountable for.

50 Lekë legally tendered coin50 Lekë legally tendered coin50 Lekë legally tendered coin50 Lekë legally tendered coin50 Lekë legally tendered coin
“““““Albanian AntiquityAlbanian AntiquityAlbanian AntiquityAlbanian AntiquityAlbanian Antiquity ”””””

50 Lekë coin, without legal tender50 Lekë coin, without legal tender50 Lekë coin, without legal tender50 Lekë coin, without legal tender50 Lekë coin, without legal tender
“100th Anniversary of  Jeronim De“100th Anniversary of  Jeronim De“100th Anniversary of  Jeronim De“100th Anniversary of  Jeronim De“100th Anniversary of  Jeronim De
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE SUPERVISORY BOARD OF THE BANK OF ALBANIA:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Bank of Albania (the "Bank") as
at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of profit and loss, changes in
capital and reserves and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Bank's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the results of its operations,
changes in capital and reserves and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting policy adopted by the Supervisory Board of Bank of Albania as disclosed
in note 2 to the financial statements.

Deloitte & Touche, Sh.p.k.
Tirana, Albania
March 25, 2004
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The accompanying notes on pages 95 to 116  are an integral part of these financial statements.

BANK OF ALBANIA
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF LEK)
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The accompanying notes on pages 95 to 116 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BANK OF ALBANIA
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF LEK)
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The accompanying notes on pages 95 to 116 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BANK OF ALBANIA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES
FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF LEK)
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BANK OF ALBANIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF LEK)

The accompanying notes on pages 95 to 116 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes on pages 95 to 116 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BANK OF ALBANIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF LEK)
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BANK OF ALBANIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Bank of Albania (the "Bank") is the central bank of the Republic of Albania and was
established according to the Law No. 8269, dated  December 23, 1997 "On the Bank of
Albania". Under the terms of its charter the Bank's main responsibilities are:

• establish and maintain price stability;
• supporting the development of a foreign exchange regime;
• management of money in circulation;
• management of interest rates;
• compilation, approbation and application of monetary policy of Republic of Albania;
• supervision of commercial bank activities including issuance of licenses to all banks; and
• issuing of licenses for international banking institutions operating within the Republic

of Albania.

The Bank is subject to the regulatory requirements of the Parliament of the Republic of
Albania and the Law “On the Bank of Albania".

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Albanian Law "On
Accounting" and in accordance with accounting policy adopted by the Supervisory Council
of the Bank of Albania. This accounting policy is broadly in line with  International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
with the exceptions related to IAS 16, IAS 21, IAS 19, IAS 26 and IAS 27. These standards
and interpretations were previously called International Accounting Standards (IAS).

The significant accounting policies used by the Bank in these financial statements are set
out as below:

The financial statements presented include the accounts of the Bank prepared on the historical
cost basis of accounting modified to include the revaluation of securities portfolio, foreign currency,
gold, the head office building, and other financial assets and liabilities (available for sale).

The accompanying financial statements are presented in the national currency of the Republic
of Albania, the Albanian Lek ("LEK").

The Bank controls the operations of the Printing House, a business entity engaged in the
printing of Government high security material and publications of Bank of Albania. The
financial operations of the Printing House have not been consolidated with those of the
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Bank, because of the inability of the Printing House to perform the revaluation of its assets
and its buildings in accordance with IAS 16. Supervisory Council of the Bank of Albania at
the meeting dated  on April 1, 2003, decided that the Printing House should be under the
supervision of Bank of Albania as a separated part of the organizational  structure of Bank
of Albania meanwhile is aimed its separation within year 2005.

The financial position of the Printing House as at December 31, 2003 is set out in Note 24 to
these financial statements.

(B) DEVIATION FROM INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

• IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment"
The revaluation methodology adopted for the revaluation of the head office building as
detailed in Note 10 was not in accordance with the revaluation requirements set out in IAS
16 on property, plant and equipment to the extent that the revaluation was not conducted by
independent, professionally qualified appraisers, the future cash flows were not discounted
and the entire category of buildings were not revalued.

• IAS 21 "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates"
The Law “On the Bank of Albania” requires the recognition of all the realized gain/loss from
exchange rate revaluation in the balance sheet under the " Capital and Reserves" account
and not as an income/expense for the period when revaluation occurred.

• IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" and IAS 26 "Accounting and Reporting by Retirement
Benefit Plans”

Reporting and accounting of Pension Fund is not prepared in accordance with IAS 19 and
IAS 26. Obligation due to Pension Fund is expressed as net value, but the calculation of this
obligation is not in compliance with specifics of accounting standards to the extent that no
actuarial estimation is performed.

• IAS 27 "Consolidated Financial Statement and Accounting for Investments in
Subsidiaries"

The financial operations of the Printing House under the administration of the Bank have not
been consolidated with those of the Bank, as it is explained below.

(C) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Income from interest on administrative operations
During the period 1992 - 2002, the Bank has recognised interest income from all the gold
deposits accounts including also the gold deposits that represents managed assets on
behalf of the government (see Note 2(m)).

During year 2003 a recalculation of interests from gold deposits that belongs to managed
assets was performed for the period in question. The liability was estimated around 843
gold ounces (LEK 37 million), due to Government, having decreased the gold reserves of
the Bank and also the revaluation reserve.

Reclassification of Pension Plan
During year 2003, the Bank compiled its accounting policy in compliance with IAS 26
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"Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans". As a result, a net pension plan
was prepared, reclassifying investments in Treasury bills (12 months maturity) from "Domestic
Securities available for sale", and " Other reserve" to "Net obligation/ Pension Fund".

Pension Plan was recognised as "Net obligation/ Pension Plan" totaling of LEK 1 million for
year 2003 (2002: LEK 6 million).

Revaluation of Securities
During year 2003 the Bank has implemented IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement". Unrealized gains or losses from the revaluation of securities available
for sale are recognized in the balance sheet in the "Reserves from revaluation of securities"
account until the date of disposal. The implementation of this treatment has increased the
revaluation reserves of LEK 270 million for the year and the respective securities portfolio.

(D) INTEREST AND COMMISSIONS

In these financial statements, interest income and expense is recognised on the accrual basis.

Commission income is credited to income when received.

Commission expense is debited to expense when paid.

(E)  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into LEK at the Bank's official
exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are retranslated into LEK at the Bank's
official exchange rate valid on the balance sheet date. Unrealised foreign exchange gains
and losses are credited or charged to the revaluation reserve.

The applicable official Bank rate (LEK to the foreign currency unit) for the principal currencies
as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as below:

Revenues and expenses in foreing currecy for the year are translated  with the annual
average exchange rate of the Bank as follows:
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(F) INVESTMENTS

Securities held by the Bank are categorised into portfolios in accordance with the Bank's
intent on the acquisition of the securities and pursuant to the Bank's security investment
strategy. These are classified as follows:

• Held-to-maturity and

• Available for sale.

All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
given including acquisition costs associated with the investment.

Held-to-maturityHeld-to-maturityHeld-to-maturityHeld-to-maturityHeld-to-maturity
Investments held to maturity are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. This
portfolio comprises obligations issued by the Government for recapitalization of the National
Commercial Bank.

Held to maturity investments are recognized on a trade-date basis and are initially measured
at cost. At subsequent reporting dates they are carried at amortized cost, less any impairment
loss recognized to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortization of any discount or
premium on the acquisition of held to maturity securities is aggregated with other investment
income receivable over the term of the instrument so that the revenue recognized in each
period represents a constant yield on the investment.

Available for saleAvailable for saleAvailable for saleAvailable for saleAvailable for sale
After initial recognition, investments which are classified as "available for sale" are remeasured
at fair value. Such fair value adjustments are reported as a separate component of equity
until the investment is sold, collected or otherwise disposed of.

Fair valuesFair valuesFair valuesFair valuesFair values
For investments traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference
to stock exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet
date.

For investments where there is no quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of the fair
value is determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same.

Impairment and uncollectability of financial assetsImpairment and uncollectability of financial assetsImpairment and uncollectability of financial assetsImpairment and uncollectability of financial assetsImpairment and uncollectability of financial assets
An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence
exists, the estimated recoverable amount and any impairment loss of that asset is
determined, based on the net present value of future anticipated cash flows, and is
recognized for the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount as
follows:
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• For financial assets at amortised cost - the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its estimated recoverable amount either directly or through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is included in the statement of profit and loss;
and

• For financial assets at fair value - where a loss has been recognised directly in
equity as a result of the write-down of the asset to recoverable amount, the
cumulative net loss recognized in equity is transferred to the statement of profit
and loss.

(G) REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS AND REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase agreements) and
securities sold under agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements) are generally
treated as collaterized financing transactions and are carried at the amounts of cash advances
or received, plus accrued interest.

Repurchase agreement are recorded in the balance sheet item "Due to domestic banks".
Based on the Bank's regulation on repurchase agreements, the Bank is not required to put
any collateral for these liabilities.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest incurred on repurchase
agreements is recognized as interest income or interest expense, over the life of each
agreement using the interest rate approved by the Supervisory Council.

(H) FIXED ASSETS

The fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation except the
head office building, which was revalued as at March 29, 2000 (see Note 10).

If the fair value of a fixed asset is lower than its carrying amount, due to circumstances not
considered to be temporary, the fixed asset is written down to its fair value.

Gains and losses on disposal(sell or out of use) of fixed assets are recognised in the profit
and loss account in the year of disposal.

Depreciation is provided on all fixed assets based on the historic cost. The annual charge
for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method, using rates specified for each
depreciable asset based on estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives applied
during 2003 are the same as year 2002:
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(I) PRINTING AND MINTING COSTS

The costs of printing banknotes and minting coins are capitalised as intangible fixed assets
and amortised over 2.5 years and 10 years, respectively.

(J) TAXATION AND PROFIT ALLOCATION

The Bank is exempt from income tax according to the Law “On the Bank of Albania" and is
required by law to pay 100% of its statutory profit directly to the State budget after allocations
to replenish the levels of reserve funds as directed by the Supervisory Council of the Bank of
Albania.

(K) LEGAL RESERVE

In accordance with the Law “On the Bank of Albania", the Bank has established a legal
reserve into which 25% of the net profit for the year is transferred until the reserve amounts
to 500% of the capital.

(L) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported periods. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

(M) MANAGED ASSETS

At as December 31, 2003, the Bank held as custodian short-term Treasury bills issued by
the Ministry of Finance and gold and other precious metals on behalf of the Government.

As at December 31, 2003, the value of gold held on behalf of the Government placed in
gold deposits abroad was LEK 2,484 million (2002 - LEK 2,523 million), being 55,876.42
troy ounces of gold (2002 - 55,036.5 troy ounces of gold). At the same date, the value of
gold and other precious metals was LEK 1,430 million (2002 - LEK 1,467 million) including
platinum, silver and other precious metals in a domestic vault of LEK 119 million and LEK
1,309 million of non-international standard gold. As the Bank acts as custodian for these
assets it does not bear any credit risk related to them.

Interest received from the deposit of government gold reserves are recognized as income
from interest due to  Government, increasing  the liability due to Government.

These assets are excluded from the Bank's balance sheet.
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(N) GRANTS

Grants are initially recorded in the balance sheet at the amount received. Grants related to
expenditure items are released to income during the period of the related expenditure.
Grants related to the purchase of property, equipment and software are released to income
over the life of the relevant assets at an amount corresponding to the associated depreciation/
amortisation charge on that asset.

(O) COMPARISON

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

3. GOLD AND PRECIOUS METALS

As at December 31, 2003, the value of gold owned by the Bank placed in gold time deposits
abroad was LEK 593 million (2002 - LEK 1,182 million), being 13,322 troy ounces of gold
(2002 - 25,782  troy ounces).

On January 2003 have been sold for needs of foreign exchange reserves management
totaling 11,608 ounces gold.

Gold is valued at the London fixing rate on the balance sheet date. Differences resulting
from the revaluation of gold are recorded in the revaluation reserve. As at December 31,
2003, the price for one troy ounce of gold was USD 417.25 (2002 - USD 342.75).

Other gold and precious metals included within domestic assets include platinum and
silver in a domestic vault, valued at the London fixing rate on the balance sheet date,
amounting to LEK 39 million as at December 31, 2003 (2002 - LEK 36 million) and LEK 4
million of non-international standard gold (2002 - LEK 4 million).

4. DEPOSITS WITH THE INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND

Deposits with the IMF resulted from the membership of the Republic of Albania in the IMF,
which is secured by a promissory note issued by the Government of Albania. The SDR
holdings approximate the Republic of Albania's membership quota paid to the IMF in SDR
and LEK. This represents the counterpart of loans, which were granted to the Republic of
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Albania as disclosed in Note 11. The SDR holdings bear interest, which is determined on
weekly basis. The interest rate prevailing as at December 31, 2003 was 1.57% (2002 -
1.91%).

5. DEPOSITS WITH FOREIGN BANKS

Short-term deposits mature in January 2004 and earn interest in the range of 0.93% to
3.63% (2002 - 1.2% to 3.76%). Deposits and current accounts with foreign banks are
denominated in EUR, USD and GBP which equate to the following foreign currency balances:

6. FOREIGN SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE



103

Foreign securities portfolio disclosed in nominal value and by currency as follows:

United States Government discounted notes are denominated in USD and have coupon
rates varying between 1.125% and 5.75%. Interest is paid semi-annually and maturities
vary between February 2004 and November 2008. The yields vary between 0.95% and
4.65% (2002 - 0.97% and 4.75%).

The French Government Treasury bonds are denominated in EUR with coupon rates varying
between 3% and 8.25%. Interest is paid annually and maturities range between January
2004 and July 2008. The yields vary between 2.06% and 4.53% (2002 - 2.60% and 4.53%).

Bank for International Settlements - medium term investments comprise of fixed coupon
securities denominated in USD and EUR with coupon rates varying between 5% and 5.5%.
Interest is payable annually for investments in EUR and semi-annually for investments in
USD, and maturities range between June 2004 and December 2005. The yields vary between
3.11% and 4.72% (2002 - 2.34% and 4.72%).

Unites States agencies discounted notes are denominated in USD with coupon rates varying
between 1.875% and 5.25%. Interest is paid semi-annually and maturities range between
January 2004 and May 2006. The yields vary between 1.14% and 4.71% (2002 - 1.59% and
4.71%).

The French Government Treasury bills are denominated in EUR and mature on various dates
between March 2004 and August 2004 with yields varying between 1.86% and 2.18%
(2002 - 3.04% and 3.82%).

The Fixed rate investments (FIX BIS) issued by the Bank for International Settlements are
denominated in USD, EUR and GBP with yields varying between 1.02% and 4.16% (2002 -
1.21% and 4.53%) and maturities ranging between January 2004 and December 2004.
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7. OTHER FOREIGN ASSETS

As at December 31, 2003, other foreign assets are comprised of cash on hand in foreign
currency of LEK 13 million (2002 - LEK 22 million) and of quotas for participation in the
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the World Bank and the Islamic
Development Bank.

8. TRANSIT CREDITS

Transit credits, by industrial sector, are comprised of:

Transit credits for agriculture and industry represent interest-free credit facilities, which
were provided to credit institutions for further distribution to ultimate borrowers to support
state development programmes (See Note 12). All loans are guaranteed by the Government
of Albania.

With the decision of the Ministry of Finance No. 6779, dated December 19, 2003, the Bank
has transferred to the Ministry of Finance the loan principals from Kreditanstalt für
Wiederaufbau (KFW) amounting EUR 48 million. The Bank will continue to intermediate for
the payments transfer and loan repayments until to full reimbursements of the loans.
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9. DOMESTIC SECURITIES

9.1 SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Short-term Treasury bills as at December 31, 2003 relate to Government of Albania zero-
coupon Treasury bills, with maturities ranging between January 2004 and December 2004,
with yields varying between 7.25% and 12.95% (2002 - 10.30% and 12.51%).

9.2 SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY

Security for the capitalization of the NCB relates to a zero-coupon bond which was issued
by the Government of Albania to replace the Bank's participation in the capital of the NCB.
The security bears interest of 6% per annum and matures in January 2006.

10. OTHER DOMESTIC ASSETS
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The net book values of tangible fixed assets by category are comprised of:

The head office building of the Bank, included within the category "Land, buildings and
general constructions", was revalued during the year 2000 to LEK 1,143 million from a fully
depreciated historic cost amount of LEK 7 million. The revaluation took place on March 29,
2000, effective January 1, 2000, and was conducted by an internal valuation committee.
The basis of the valuation was not based on discounted future cash flows, but based on
the potential market rental value of the property over an estimated useful life of 50 years. No
other buildings owned by the Bank were revalued. The revaluation surplus of LEK 1,143
million was credited to the revaluation reserve and is amortised monthly in accordance with
the respective amortization rate.

According to Albanian law, the legal title of the building where the Bank is located is
unclear. Bank of Albania is in process with Ministry of Finance to determine the status of
the ownership for the fixed assets managed by the Bank.

Net intangible assets are comprised of:
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11. DUE TO THE INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND

ESAF borrowings related to the Republic of Albania's IMF quota and were drawn down on
behalf of the Government for macroeconomic reforms. There are 4 component facilities:

The initial ESAF facility was drawn down in 1993 and is repayable over 10 years which
commenced in 1999. The outstanding balance as at December 31, 2003 was SDR 4,377,000
(2002 - SDR 10,589,000) and the facility bears interest at 0.5%, payable semi-annually.

An additional loan under this facility (known as Poverty Reduction and Growth Facility) was
drawn down during the period 1999 to 2001. The outstanding balance as at December 31,
2003 was SDR 44,451,500 (2002: SDR 45,040,000). This facility is repayable by 2009 in 10
semi-annual installments commencing in 2004. Interest is payable, after the grace period,
at 0.5% semi-annually.

The Poverty Reduction and Growth Facility 3 for Albania loan: This is a SDR 28,000,000 loan
facility approved by the IMF Executive Board on June 21, 2002. As a result of loan repayments
during 2003 the balance as of December 31, 2003 is SDR 12,000,000 (2002: SDR 4,000,000)
with an interest rate of 0.5% payable semi-annually. This facility is repayable after a grace
period of five and a half years in 10 semi-annual equal installments.

12. DUE TO NON-RESIDENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The loan for development of LEK 384 million consists of USD 1.7 million and of EUR 1.7
million (see Note 8) by European Investment Bank. Interest is paid by the recipients of these
transit credits (banks and domestic companies) directly to the providers of the funds.

The loan from the Bank of Greece (Hellenic Republic borrowing) was granted for the purpose
of funding the balance of payments of the Republic of Albania. The interest rate is 1.17%
per annum, payable semi-annually. The loan matures in 2018.
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13. CURRENCY IN CIRCULATION

The exclusive rights of national currency issue are vested with the Bank. This item comprises
valid domestic banknotes and coins in circulation issued by the Bank.

The following bank notes and coins were in circulation as at December 31, 2003:

14. DUE TO DOMESTIC BANKS

Interest on compulsory reserves is calculated as follows:

LEK balances: 70% of the yield on the repurchase agreements: 4.9% as at December 31,
2003 (50% of the yield on 3-month domestic Treasury bills: 5.6 % as at December 31, 2002);

USD balances: 70% of the one-month USD LIBOR rate: 0.8% as at December 31, 2003
(50% of the one-month USD LIBOR rate: 0.69% as at December 31, 2002);

EUR balances: 70% of the one-month EUR LIBOR rate: 1.49% as at December 31, 2003
(50% of the one-month EUR LIBOR rate: 1.45% as at December 31, 2002);

The Bank does not pay interest on correspondent accounts, demand deposits and the
license application deposit.

Overnight deposits from domestic banks attract interest of 3.5% (6% at December 31,
2002).
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15. DUE TO THE GOVERNMENT

“The profit distributable to the Government” relates to the remaining part of the profit not yet
distributed to the Government at the year-end based on the decision of the Supervisory
Council No.12, dated February 25, 2004.

“Deposits received on behalf of the Government” relate mainly to international donor funds
deposited at the Bank for subsequent transfer to aid projects in Albania, of LEK 1,678
million, and the main account of LEK 3,552 million.

"Other" includes funds received by the Bank of  LEK 24 million from a loan granted to the
Government by the Islamic Development Bank (IDB), and LEK 10 million relating to a loan
for courier system.

16. DEFERRED INCOME

“The World Bank grant” relates to a grant received by the Bank during the year 2002 for the
purchase of computer software and equipment for the implementation of the ATM project
(Accounting and Treasury Management).

17. OTHER DOMESTIC LIABILITIES
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Net obligation/pension plan as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follow:

Pension plan scheme consists of employee contribution of 2% of gross salary and pension
fund of employer of 15% on the general fund of employees salaries.

18. REVALUATION RESERVE

The components of the revaluation reserve are as follows:

“The revaluation reserve component for foreign currency and gold balances” has changed
due to the revaluation of currencies during the year with LEK 12,003 million, and due to the
decrease of bank position in gold for the amount of LEK 37 million related to deposit interests
transferred to the Government (See Note 2(b) and 2(m)).

19. OTHER RESERVES

The components of the other reserves are as follows:
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“The special reserve” relates to funds provided by the European Community for the Balance
of Payments and no movement has been incurred in this reserve since 1995.

“Investment fund” consists of a fund created with decision of Supervisory Council with aim
purchase of a new building for the Bank of Albania.

"Other " includes a total of LEK 378 million created by the transfer of LEK 193 million from
the profit of year 2003, based on the Decision of  Supervisory Council No.12, dated February
25, 2004.

20. INTEREST AND COMMISSION INCOME (RESIDENTS)

21. OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET

22. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

“Personnel expenses” consist of employees' salaries, social insurance, pension plan
contribution and other costs.

“Social costs” represent mainly compulsory contributions to the Social Security Fund. As at
December 31, 2003, the Bank had 304 employees (2002 - 245 employees).

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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24. PRINTING HOUSE

As detailed in Note 2(c), the Bank controls the operations of the Printing House. The financial
position of the Printing House as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

25. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Bank is involved in a number of lawsuits and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary
course of business. Management is of the opinion that these proceedings will not have a
material effect on the financial position or operating results of the Bank.

As at 31 December 2003 the Bank has recorded as an off balance item only the value of the
long-term loans given to employees totaling of LEK 537 million.

26. RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and other decisions.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

As at 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002, transactions made with related parties
comprised:
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27. RISK MANAGEMENT

Liquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity risk
Policies to monitor and address liquidity risk are set by the Supervisory Council of the Bank.
The Monetary Operations Department of the Bank monitors the liquidity risk on a continual
basis by analysing liquidity ratios, gaps and economic scenarios.

Liquidity management policies are set to ensure that, even under adverse conditions, the
Bank is in a position to meet its obligations.

Credit riskCredit riskCredit riskCredit riskCredit risk
The Monetary Operations Department of the Bank, under the control of the Supervisory
Council, is responsible for assessing the credit risk associated with the Bank's operations.
The credit risk is mitigated by the Bank transacting largely with international and governmental
institutions. Loans to domestic banks are secured by Government of Albania Treasury bills.

Price riskPrice riskPrice riskPrice riskPrice risk
The key elements of price risk affecting the Bank are:

• currency risk associated with fluctuations in the value of financial instruments due
to changes in foreign exchange rates, and

• interest rate risk associated with fluctuations in the value of financial instruments
due to changes in market interest rates.

The Bank's exposure to currency risk is monitored on a continual basis by the Monetary
Operations Department. Financial assets denominated in foreign currency are disclosed in
each relevant note to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk is monitored by the Monetary Operations Department of the Bank. The
Bank mitigates such risks by maintaining a significant excess of interest bearing assets
over liabilities (as detailed in Note 28 below). The Bank maintains a portfolio of interest
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bearing financial assets and liabilities such that the generated net interest income is
significantly in excess of operating requirements which minimizes the potential adverse
effects of interest rate fluctuations. Interest rates applicable to financial assets and liabilities
are disclosed in each relevant note to the financial statements.

28. INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
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29. CURRENCY NET POSITION
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BUDGET INDICATORS

The Bank of Albania drafts and implements its budget plan to attain the completion of
functions assigned to it as provided by law.

The Bank of Albania's financial activity relies on the management of foreign currency reserves,
credit to government and its relations with commercial banks, according to its monetary
policy. The Bank of Albania's targets are reflected in the budget indicators approved by the
Supervisory Council.

The main budget indicators for 2003 are fulfilled as follows:

Foreign currency incomes converted into US dollar exceeded the plan by USD 267 thousand,
while foreign currency incomes expressed in Lek did not meet the expectations. Some
factors led to this situation, and particularly the exchange rate produced a dominant negative
effect of about Lek 873 million, thus absorbing the positive effect of exceeding the volume
of foreign currency reserves. The foreign currency reserve was planned at USD 812 million,
while converted into US dollar reached about 1 billion.

Net incomes from government operations result unfulfilled due to the interaction of two
factors: the reduction of financing stock of the State budget deficit for less than 1 billion
and 152 million Lek and the decrease of the Treasury bills yield for 334 million Lek. Both of
them are estimated as positive factors since they suggest the liquidity's improving in the
system and the decrease of currency cost, though the Bank of Albania's incomes were not
fulfilled.

Foreign currency expenditures were not fulfilled according to the expectations, mainly due
to the decline of foreign currency exchange rate compared to the projections. Another reason
is the cut of interest rates on accounts (liabilities) held with the IMF and the commercial
banks' required reserves held with the Bank of Albania compared to the plan.
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Expenditures to liabilities in Lek exceeded the plan compared to the projections. A significant
improvement of liquidity in the banking system brought about positive effects in exceeding
the expenditures for Repo interests and other deposits of commercial banks.

Expenditures for required reserves in Lek resulted to be within the targeted expectations.
Effects of the growing average state of deposits and the increase of the base interest rate
in Lek, the EURIBOR and LIBOR in the remuneration of the required reserve are neutralized
by the falling of the average interest rate level.

Management expenditures have been fulfilled less than expectations, almost at all
components, due to the non-completion of some expenditures in due time and to the concept
of the plan as an upper limit. However, non-fulfillment of some indicators did not hamper
the normal progress of business in the Bank.
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